Milwaukee Teacher Education Center (MTEC) Charter School Proposal

MILWAUKEE ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES ACADEMY

MILWAUKEE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Charter Petition/Proposal Submission Cover Sheet

Α.	INCLUDED IN TH		
	⊠ Executive Summ	,	
	□ 15 Page Petition/		
	⊠ CD/Computer D		
		nstrumentality Petitions Only)	
	Provide the name of	the person who will serve as the print	nary contact for this proposed charter school:
	Laci	Co	oppins Robbins
	(First Nam	e)	(Last Name)
В.	NAME OF CHART	ER SCHOOL: Milwaukee Enviror	nmental Sciences Academy (MESA)
	 Petition 	Instrumenta	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
	⊠ Proposal	x Non-Instrur	
	IF NON-INSTRUM	AENTA LITY.	
			Milwaukee Teacher Education Center (MTEC)
		applied for 501-C3 non-profit status?	
	•		
C.	NAME OF CONTA	CT PERSON:Laci Coppins Robbin	ns,
Ed.D	TITLE/DELATION	SHIP TO PROPOSED SCHOOL:	Evecutive Director of MTEC
		SS:6737 W. Washington	
1420_			
	TELEPHONE:		414-553-0469
		(Day)	(Cell)
		Laci Coppins Robbins	
<lcoppi< td=""><td>insrobbins@mteconlii</td><td>ne.org></td><td></td></lcoppi<>	insrobbins@mteconlii	ne.org>	
D.	The proposed school	ol will open in the fall of school year: _	2013-2014
		uested:5 years	
	School Year	Grade Levels	Total Student Enrollment
	1st Year	Head Start- Fifth grade	380
	2 nd Year	Head Start –Sixth Grade	400
	3 rd Year	Head Start –Seventh Grade	425
	4th Year	Head Start –Eighth Grade	450
	5th Year	Head Start –Eighth Grade	450
			reserves the right to give priority to petitions ar of targeted student populations within the district
and		e currently successful schools.	of targeted student populations within the distric
	a to repriem	c carrently successival sensors.	
	2) I certify that I ha	ve the authority to submit this petition	/proposal and that all information contained
her	rein is complet		epresentation could result in disqualification
fro	om the	petition/proposal process or revocation	on after award.
	3) NON-INSTRUM	MENTALITIES ONLY: Lunderstand	d that seat availability is based on Milwaukee
Pu		s enrollment counts. In any year seats	
	500 G	Foll-	
	COLA		0.4/0.6/0.000
			04/06/2020
	Signature		04/06/2020 Date Submitted

Laci S Coppins Robbins,	Ed.D
Printed Name	

MILWAUKEE ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES ACADEMY

A Milwaukee Teacher Education Center Charter School Proposal

Table of Contents

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- A. The Educational Program to be Offered
- B. Name of the Person Seeking the MPS Charter
- C. The Applicant Team Developing the Proposed Program
- D. The Expected Student Outcomes

II. CHARTER SCHOOL PROPOSAL

- A. A description of the charter concept including vision, mission and rationale for charter status with research supporting the concept
- B. The name of the person who is seeking to establish the charter
- C. The name of the person who will be in charge of the charter school, and the manner in which administrative services will be provided. Name of charter school person who will address charter contract issues.
- D. A description of how the community wishes to assume more responsibility/support for, or leadership in, the educational process
- E. A description of the educational program of the school, and the school's leadership capacity to implement the proposed program. Identify the research-based curriculum and methodologies to be implemented and a description of the parental/community involvement in the development of the educational program.
- F. The methods the school will use to enable pupils to attain the educational goals under s. 118.02, and promotion/graduation requirements, as well as the manner in which bilingual, special education, guidance, library, support staff services (i.e. diagnostic teacher, social worker, school psychologist) will be delivered to support the identified educational goals. Identify program specific objectives and accountability measures to which the school agrees it will be held accountable.
- G. The method by which pupil progress in attaining the educational goals under s. 118.01 will be measured. (Referenced in 118.01) Include local assessment measures as Appendix J.
- H. School Governing Body: The governance structure of the school, including the method to be followed by the school to ensure parental involvement and the plan for addressing parental concerns. {Referenced in 9.12 Administrative Procedure 9.12(g)(1)}
- I. Subject to sub. (7)(a) and (am) and ss. 118.19(1) and 121.02(1)(a)2., the certifications and qualifications that must be met by the individuals to be employed in the school. {Referenced in 118.19(1) and 121.02(1)(a)2}
- J. The procedures and requirements that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of the pupils, including identifying steps to address safety concerns that may arise.
- K. Describe the targeted student population and the strategies, procedures and

- requirements by which the school will welcome and recruit a student body diverse in race, language, economic status and special education needs reflective of the school district population.
- L. Enrollment and grade level distribution chart that shows grades and enrollment numbers for each year of the contract term.
- M. A complete proposed budget is attached to this proposal as Appendix G. (Contact the MPS Finance Department for the templates.) If other funding sources besides the per pupil amount, including grants are being sought to supplement the charter school, include the name of the grant the duration of the grant and plans for sustainability if/when the grant funds end.
- N. The manner in which annual audits of the financial and programmatic (performance and compliance) operation of the school will be performed is as follows:
- O. The procedures for disciplining pupils. If the charter school will have its own discipline policy, attach it as Appendix H.
- P. The public school alternatives for pupils who reside in the district and do not wish to attend or are not admitted to the charter school.
- Q. A description of the school facilities and the types and limits of the liability insurance that the school will carry. If you have a site, identify the facility/location. If planning a shared facility, provide information regarding arrangements necessary for space accommodations/needs.
- R. The effect of the establishment of the charter school on the liability of the school district.
- S. The following policies including procedure to inform parents:
 - a) School transportation policy
 - b) School nutrition policy
- T. Indicate whether the proposed charter school wishes to be an instrumentality or non-instrumentality charter school. Indicate if the school is submitting a petition or proposal. All petitions should attach the signatures as Appendix I.
- U. Indicate the school year that the charter status is requested to begin, and length (1 to 5 years) of the contract term sought

III. APPENDICES

- Appendix A Tentative Charter School Calendar
- Appendix B Student Day Start and End Times
- Appendix C Uniform Policy
- Appendix D If an Instrumentality, A List of Memoranda of Understanding the Charter School May Seek to Implement Its Educational Program
- Appendix E Diversity Plan
- Appendix F Special Education Plan
- Appendix G Charter School Proposed Budget and Optional Services Form
- Appendix H Charter School Discipline Policy
- Appendix I Petition Signatures, if Applicable (Instrumentality Schools)
- Appendix J Vitae and Contact Information of the School Leader(s) and Applicant Team
- Appendix L Additional Curriculum Information to Support Educational Concept
- Appendix M Letters of Support From Business and Community Partners

Appendix N Tentative Sample Teacher Work Week
Appendix O Local Assessments
Appendix P Any Other Pertinent Information

IV. BIBLIOGRAPHY

MILWAUKEE ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES

A MTEC CHARTER SCHOOL PROPOSAL

I.EXECUTIVE SUMMARY {Referenced in Administrative Policy 9.12 (3)(a)} Maximum 1-2 page overview which identifies the following:

The Milwaukee Teacher Education Center's (MTEC) vision for Milwaukee's children is to improve the learning of all students in urban schools, contribute to the common good as active and productive citizens, develop life-long abilities and interests, and succeed in the world of work using the Expeditionary Learning (EL Education) model. With this vision as the guiding principle, MTEC is proposing to the Milwaukee Public Schools' Board of Directors to open a noninstrumentality charter school for the 2013-14 school year. The mission of Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School is to provide a solid, intensive program of academic study aligned with the Wisconsin Core Standards that is dedicated to the intellectual, physical, social, and emotional growth of all students within a safe and orderly environment. Emphasis will be placed on high academic achievement through sustainability literacy engaging students in thinking, problem solving, and decision-making, inspiring students to seek healthy, more sustainable lifestyles in a global society while stimulating the pursuit of higher education. To build a community within Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy where students are nurtured, challenged, and encouraged to commit themselves to the goals of the school as well as the community. Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy will become a cornerstone for the neighborhood, providing both students and the community with educational opportunities, environmental awareness, and healthy living choices.

GOAL: The goal of Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School is to develop a high performing urban charter school with a focus on environmental sciences using the Expeditionary Learning model. The thread running through this environmental curriculum is the teaching of ecological sustainable practices. The World Commission on Environment and Development (1987) created a definition of sustainability. It stated that: "Sustainable development meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs." We will utilize project-based learning and differentiated instruction that nurtures and ensures all students become ecologically responsible. This focus on environmental sciences allows students to explore areas and provide choices and options for healthy living, utilizing investigation strategies, technology, and field experiences to drill deeper into the principles of sustainable learning, living, and resources for our community.

A. THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM TO BE OFFERED:

Our educational program is the integration of successful programs and practices with an emphasis on environmental sciences.

Expeditionary Learning (EL) is a national model that supports project based learning to actively engage students in challenging, meaningful work.

STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts, and Mathematics) lays a strong foundation for an interdisciplinary program integrating the five areas of science, technology, engineering, arts, and mathematics providing the following:

Science - Engages students in scientific study, inquiry, problem solving, and developing research skills critical for advanced academic studies.

Technology – Provides a gateway into the 21st century by providing literacy through multimedia and global awareness, anywhere at anytime with standards and skill development

embedded.

Fine Arts - Develops a greater appreciation of a student's individual talents, and an understanding and appreciation of the humanities. Encourages fine motor skills, neural development and problem solving.

Mathematics - Involves the teaching of problem-solving strategies that help students see the many applications of their mathematical understandings in the world around them. We continue with the basics of all learning, literacy, specifically at the developmental levels.

LITERACY (reading and writing) curriculum offers either two or three hours of literacy instruction per day, depending on the grade level. At the heart of the curriculum, at all grade levels, are the hour-long module lessons. Each grade level includes four modules, which span a full school year. The four modules allow students to build important content knowledge based on a compelling topic related to science, social studies, or literature. Each module uses rich, authentic texts throughout. Additional core areas are listed below.

SOCIAL STUDIES: Provides all students with information and skills necessary to become productive citizens in a democratic society.

PHYSICAL EDUCATION: Provides students sustained physical activity through contemporary sports to develop and maintain a healthy body and lifestyle.

MUSIC: Assist with the increase capacity in learning other subjects while enhancing skills of children in areas such as language development and spatial-temporal skills.

Best practices and successful strategies will be utilized to insure increased academic achievement. These strategies include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Expeditionary Learning E-learning distance and virtual Looping
- Year-Round Education (YRE) Accelerated curriculum K-12
- Differentiated Instruction Co-curricular activities Extended day

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy will begin with kindergarten (K4) through grade 5 with two classes at each grade level (approximately 350 students). A grade level will be added each year through 8^{th} grade.

Our educational program and implementation strategies will be provided in an environment that offers a year round education calendar (YRE), which promotes the retention of knowledge. In addition, co-curricular and extended day programming will enrich the learning environment. Activities will be, but are not limited to, tutoring, mentoring, sports, and humanities.

With any successful program there needs to be support for learners. Supportive staff will be a critical factor for our educational program and will follow Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction's (DPI) requirements with the opportunity to provide additional counseling and support as needed (i.e., psychological services, diagnostic support). Support for students with special needs will be met as determined by their Individualized Education Plan (IEP).

Parental/guardian engagement is essential to a successful school, and opportunities will be available to enhance their child(ren)'s educational experience and academic performance. A predetermined number of hours of participation will be required for each family along with an

annual parent satisfaction survey.

B. NAME OF THE PERSON SEEKING THE MPS CHARTER:

Laci Coppins Robbins, Ed.D., Executive Director of MTEC, is seeking to establish the charter proposal.

C. THE APPLICANT TEAM DEVELOPING THE PROPOSED PROGRAM:

Thomas McGinnity, Sallie A. Brown, and James Sonnenberg are the applicant team.

D. THE EXPECTED STUDENT OUTCOMES: Measurable student outcomes will include:

- Student stability rate of 90% (90% of our students will return to our school yearly)
- Student promotion rate 93%
- Attendance rate 93%
- Value added growth of 110% of national norms as measured by the Wisconsin Alternate assessment(WAA)
- Achieve a higher percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced on the Wisconsin state based assessment measure in all grade levels and subject areas than the average MPS student.

II. CHARTER SCHOOL PROPOSAL seeking a non-instrumentality charter school for 2013-14 school year.

A. A description of the charter concept including vision, mission and rationale for charter status with research supporting the concept.

At the forefront of this proposal are the Core Values/Guiding Principles set forth by the Board of MTEC that promote academic excellence for all children through teacher development and effective leadership in a diverse urban setting. These principles are as follows:

- Social Justice We commit to being tenacious and relentless advocates for equity and excellence in educating all children.
- Integrity We demonstrate honesty, professionalism, and respect in all our relationships and environment.
- Diversity We honor differences by promoting high expectations for all learners. It is our goal to
 develop a diverse school community culturally and ethnically that reflects our global society
 exploring language, social differences and cultural beliefs, resulting in respect for differences.
- Collaboration We value teamwork and differences of opinion; we endeavor to meet the
 learning needs of students, parents/guardians, community, and staff through communication and
 dialogue.
- Accountability We commit to a culture of evidence and excellence based on the development of the whole child.
- *Innovation* We demonstrate flexibility, problem-solving, and humor to maintain a proactive disposition to change.
- Sustainability We model and promote effective stewardship for the regeneration of our children, our environment, our community, and our future.
- Responsiveness We adhere to a "prescriptive education" approach to meet the learning needs of
 each student.

VISION: The focus on environmental science will allow students to explore curriculum areas that combine rigor, exploration and active learning while engendering academic excellence, high

expectations leading to lifelong learning, and higher-level education. Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, A MTEC Charter School, will build a foundation through service learning that will support and address the need for a healthier lifestyle for urban children and their families along with providing resources for our community with the creation of gardens, eco ponds and hatcheries.

MISSION: MILWAUKEE ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES ACADEMY, A MTEC CHARTER SCHOOL is dedicated to the intellectual, physical, social and emotional growth of all students. Emphasis is placed on engaging students in thinking, problem solving, and decision-making allowing students to function in a global society. We will maintain a climate of high expectations supported through differentiated instruction that meets the needs of all learners within a safe and orderly environment, and promote family and community involvement to create an atmosphere that nurtures academic achievement, and stimulates the pursuit of higher education.

RATIONALE: Developing this school as a charter provides the necessary autonomy that will allow the flexibility in design and implementation. This autonomy, free from many of the rules and regulations imposed by state and local governmental agencies, gives the tools for fair accountability. One important aspect of this autonomy is the opportunity to staff a school with individuals that share a strong commitment to children, the same philosophy, and belief in the mission, vision and ideology of the school. We believe this makes a huge difference in the academic success of the child and the school, and ultimately weighs far more than the overall curriculum. The ability to charter also bridges the social and emotional elements that may have been lost under the auspices of the current school structure that demands a set curriculum and standard day.

B. The name of the person who is seeking to establish the charter.

Laci Coppins Robbins, Ed.D, Executive Director of MTEC, is seeking to establish the charter proposal with the Milwaukee Public Schools Board of School Directors

B. The name of the person who will be in charge of the charter school, and the manner in which administrative services will be provided. Name of charter school person who will address charter contract issues.

The School Leader is Mr. Michael Morgan, principal. Additional school based administrative services and support will be shared among the school. Assistant Principal and-Dean of Students. and Dean of Support Services. Further resources for family and student support is available viaavailable through via the Dean of Family Engagement. Teacher and Learning Liaison and the Parent and Learning Liaison. All questions regarding this contract proposal and charter contract issues should be addressed to Laci Coppins Robbins, Ed.D. MTEC Executive Director. Direct support for classroom educators includes induction, mentoring and professional development services via the MTEC admin offices and various education partners, such as EL Education.

C. A description of how the community wishes to assume more responsibility/support for, or leadership in, the educational process.

The community will be informed of the school's location through a marketing campaign. Efforts

will be made to share our philosophy of educating children, along with the mission and vision. We believe that parental/guardian engagement is essential to a successful school and will require parents and students to sign an agreement that will delineate our expectations for our families (i.e., mandatory school uniform policy, agreement with our school's discipline policy, homework policy, parent conferences, and attendance requirements) upon enrollment. We will provide parents/guardians with our staff compact outlining the services that will be provided to their children. Parent/guardian input will be a necessary component in order for our school to flourish and grow. A yearly parent/guardian satisfaction survey will be conducted to assist in gauging our program's effectiveness in our community. We will develop a parent student compact that will be signed at the time of admission to our school.

Partnerships will be established with a number of community organizations and businesses that will be actively involved in the educational process of our students. Support and commitment letters have been included in this document to verify their involvement in the educational process. Since this school will be adding additional grade levels and advanced programming, this will also give the school ample opportunity to develop additional support as it enhances and expands awareness throughout the community.

In addition, community feedback will be utilized to assess the needs and desires of the surrounding community. Individuals who will be implementing the program will also provide additional input along with prospective partnerships. It will be critical that continuous input is sought to sustain growth as a high performing school.

E. A description of the educational program of the school, and the school's leadership capacity to implement the proposed program. Identify the research-based curriculum and methodologies to be implemented and a description of the parental/community involvement in the development of the educational program.

With any proposed project, it is important to incorporate best practices and elements that have proven successful from practitioners in school development and implementation. We will create a solid foundation of high standards, strong leadership, instructional excellence, and a safe and positive school environment with common instructional routines and strategies implemented across content areas to fully engage students in the learning process. These elements include:

CURRICULUM:

The Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School will utilize the Expeditionary Learning model. The goal of the school is to create engaging and rigorous educational experiences within the community that teach character development and foster personal ownership in student learning. The Expeditionary Learning model is based on ten Design Principles and five Core Practice dimensions. The Design Principles describe the philosophy of education and core values of Expeditionary Learning. The Design Principles are drawn from the work of Outward Bound's founder Kurt Hahn and other educational leaders and are mutually compatible with the mission, philosophy, and strategic goals of Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy.

The ten Expeditionary Learning Design Principles are:

The Primacy of Self Discovery - Learning happens best with emotion, challenge, and requisite levels
of support. People discover their abilities, values, passions, and responsibilities in situations that offer
adventure and the unexpected. In Expeditionary Learning schools students undertake tasks that
require perseverance, fitness, craftsmanship, imagination, self-discipline, and significant

achievement. A teacher's primary task is to help students overcome their fears and discover they can do more than they think they can.

- The Having of Wonderful Ideas Teaching in Expeditionary Learning schools fosters curiosity
 about the world by creating learning situations that provide something important to think about, time
 to experiment, and time to make sense of what is observed.
- The Responsibility for Learning Learning is both a personal process of discovery and a social
 activity. Everyone learns both individually and as part of a group. Every aspect of an Expeditionary
 Learning school encourages both children and adults to become increasingly responsible for directing
 their own personal and collective learning.
- Empathy and Caring Learning is fostered best in communities where students' and teachers' ideas are respected and where there is mutual trust. Learning groups are small in Expeditionary Learning schools, with a caring adult looking after the progress and acting as an advocate for each child. Older students mentor younger ones, and students feel physically and emotionally safe.
- Success and Failure All students need to be successful if they are to build the confidence and
 capacity to take risks and meet increasingly difficult challenges. But it is also important for students
 to learn from their failures, to persevere when things are hard, and to learn to turn disabilities into
 opportunities.
- Collaboration and Competition Individual development and group development are integrated so that the value of friendship, trust, and group action is clear. Students are encouraged to compete not against each other, but with their own personal best and with rigorous standards of excellence.
- Diversity and Inclusion Both diversity and inclusion increase the richness of ideas, creative power, problem-solving ability, and respect for others. In Expeditionary Learning schools, students investigate and value their different histories and talents as well as those of other communities and cultures. Schools and learning groups are heterogeneous.
- The Natural World A direct and respectful relationship with the natural world refreshes the human spirit and teaches the important ideas of recurring cycles and cause and effect. Students learn to become stewards of the earth and of future generations.
- Solitude and Reflection Students and teachers need time alone to explore their own thoughts, make
 their own connections, and create their own ideas. They also need time to exchange their reflections
 with other students and with adults.
- Service and Compassion We are crew, not passengers. Students and teachers are strengthened by
 acts of consequential service to others, and one of an Expeditionary Learning school's primary
 functions is to prepare students with the attitudes and skills to learn from and be of service.

The Core Practice Benchmarks describe Expeditionary Learning in practice: what teachers, students, school leaders, families, and other partners do in fully implemented Expeditionary Learning schools. The five core practice dimensions work in concert and support one another to promote high achievement through active learning, character growth, and teamwork.

The Core Practice Benchmarks serve several purposes. They provide a comprehensive overview of the Expeditionary Learning model, a planning guide for school leaders and teachers, a framework for designing professional development, and a tool for evaluating implementation. Each of the five core practices is comprised of a series of benchmarks. Each benchmark describes a particular area of practice and is organized by components and descriptors.

The Core Practices are:

- Curriculum: EL curriculum makes standards come alive through rigorous learning expeditions.
- Instruction: Discovery, inquiry, critical thinking, problem-solving, and collaboration are keys to
 instruction in EL schools.

- Assessment: EL schools embrace the power of student-engaged assessment to build student
 ownership of learning, focus on standards-based learning targets, and drive achievement.
- Culture and Character: EL schools build cultures of respect, responsibility, courage and kindness, and are committed to quality work and citizenship.
- Leadership: EL schools empower effective leaders who support high achievement and continuous improvement.

Learning Expeditions will be the major vehicle for delivering curriculum at Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy. Learning Expeditions are interdisciplinary studies, usually lasting 6-12 weeks, led by a teacher or teaching team. They are based on state standards and local curriculum maps and focus on what teachers determine to be essential content and skills. They use compelling case studies to make content come alive for students. Learning Expeditions typically include one or more skills-rich student project that results in high quality products or performances for an audience beyond the classroom. They involve students in fieldwork (field research) and service learning and connect them with local experts. The elements of Learning Expeditions include: standards, compelling topics, guiding questions, character, literacy, student products, service, adventure, and assessment.

STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Mathematics), will lay the groundwork for a strong foundation for an interdisciplinary program integrating the five areas of science, technology, engineering, arts and mathematics providing the following:

Science: Provides advanced academic studies using real world applications of science connecting students to the technological and societal impacts of science, and integrating concepts of math into scientific exploration utilizing:

Inquiry

- Risk taking Critical thinking through discovery
- Exploration
 Collaboration and team building

Technology: Provides a gateway into the 21st century by providing literacy through multimedia and global awareness, anywhere at anytime with standards and skill development embedded. We will weave technology into the fabric of our disciplines while simultaneously creating a more interactive and responsive teaching model. In this way, we intend to prepare our students to be part of a highly global and interconnected society.

Expeditions: Building upon the field work, scholars participate in activities outside of the school building to gain a greater understanding of the relationship between what they are learning in the classroom and the connection with the broader community and world.

Fine Arts: Develops a greater appreciation of a student's individual talents and nurtures an understanding and appreciation of the humanities. Courses such as art, chorus, and visual arts will be incorporated in our curriculum.

Mathematics: Combines a skill based and an inquiry approach that involves the teaching of problem-solving strategies to help students see the applications of their mathematical understandings in the world around them. The problem-solving focus provides a natural interdisciplinary connection, with the disciplines of language arts and science.

Literacy (reading and writing): Creates a balanced approach that focuses on the academic needs of each student by providing targeted, comprehensive and meaningful instruction that incorporates integration of phonemic awareness, reading, and writing. Grade level standards, and independent reading, and oral language development will also guide instruction and teaching of word study, conventions of print, and vocabulary presented by the instructor to address the needs of the student. **Social Studies**: Combines an array of topics that help students expand their understanding of their families, communities, history, and the world. Topics presented provide a wide range of worthwhile questions and experiences utilizing and integrating curriculum across the content areas.

Physical education: Provides students sustained physical activity in order to develop and maintain a healthy body and lifestyle incorporating contemporary activities such as zumba, spinning, yoga and meditation.

Our curriculum will be implemented incorporating the following strategies:

Project-based learning: Because project-based learning is filled with active and engaged learning and explores real-world problems and challenges, it inspires students to obtain a deeper knowledge of the subjects they are studying. Research also indicates that students are more likely to retain the knowledge gained through this approach far more readily than through traditional textbook-centered learning. In addition, students develop confidence and self-direction as they move through both team-based and independent work across disciplines.

E-learning: Multimedia and virtual learning will spiral from K-8th grade. Students conduct research, participate in field experiences, and present to enhance their discovery learning with the integration of technology.

Looping: Looping--which is sometimes referred to as "multiyear teaching or multiyear placement" occurs when a teacher is promoted with his/her students to the next grade level with the same group of children for two or three years. What results is a continuity of relationships between teacher, students, and parents/guardians that enables children to flourish socially and academically in a stable environment.

Kindergarten through Eighth Grade (K-8): According to Columbia University research, conducted in 2010, as reported by the Harvard Graduate School of Education, "the transitions to middle schools were harmful for students in that setting." The research found that students entering grades six through eight or seven to eight schools experience a "sharp drop" in achievement versus those attending K–8 schools. As a K-8 model Students of MESA will be afforded the opportunity for more personalized attention and development of meaningful relationships between student and families (West, 2012).

Accelerated curriculum: The Accelerated Schools Model developed by Dr. Henry Levin at Stanford University is committed to the premise that every child should be treated as gifted, that students achieve when supported in a learning environment with high expectations. Schools incorporate the efforts of parents/guardians and schools together, co-leading governance and decision-making functions to create a curriculum and an atmosphere in which accelerated learning is fostered. Challenging students to their maximum potential is a critical element in advancing children academically.

Year-round education (YRE) with an extended school day: A YRE calendar coincides more effectively with the four growing seasons needed for the environmental focus of the school. In

addition, it provides a more consistent calendar conducive to learning and retention. There is some research that contends that year-round schools can have more positive effects on students who are deemed at risk for academic problems such as children from low-income families or other students who might typically be low performers in school (Cooper, et al., 2003). In addition, an extended school day will provide the necessary time to incorporate a rich fine arts program into the curriculum as well.

Co-curricular and extended day programming will enrich the learning environment. Activities will be, but are not limited to, tutoring, mentoring, sports, and humanities. Funding of these programs will be through W2, community recreation funds, grants, school budgeting and fee based

Support for learners: Supportive staff will be a crucial factor for our educational program and will follow DPI requirements with the opportunity to provide additional counseling and support as needed (i.e. psychological services, diagnostic support). Support for students with disabilities will be met as determined by the Individualized Education Plan (IEP).

In order to ensure successful implementation of the curriculum, mandatory and continuous staff development will be required prior to the beginning of the school year, and throughout the academic year. The academic calendar in Appendix A delineates professional development days.

F. The methods the school will use to enable pupils to attain the educational goals under s. 118.02, and promotion/graduation requirements, as well as the manner in which bilingual, special education, guidance, library, support staff services (i.e. diagnostic teacher, social worker, school psychologist) will be delivered to support the identified educational goals. Identify program specific objectives and accountability measures to which the school agrees it will be held accountable.

GOAL 1- ACADEMIC RIGOR: To use best practices, formative and summative assessments, and professional development to meet or surpass the Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction in accordance with the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) standard percentage of all students, including all subgroups, achieving proficiency on the state based assessment measure.

GOAL STATEMENT 1:

FROM FALL TO SPRING, ALL LEARNERS WILL DEMONSTRATE AT LEAST ONE YEAR'S ACADEMIC GROWTH IN READING AS MEASURED BY THE RENAISSANCE STAR READING ASSESSMENT, IN CORRESPONDING YEARS.

FROM FALL TO SPRING, ALL LEARNERS WILL DEMONSTRATE AT LEAST ONE YEAR'S ACADEMIC GROWTH IN MATH AS MEASURED BY THE RENAISSANCE STAR MATH ASSESSMENT, IN CORRESPONDING YEARS...

Methods to achieve goal one:

- (A) Employ a staff that believes in the mission and philosophy of the school, provides ongoing staff development in curriculum, and promote retention of staff through competitive pay and benefits:
- (B) Increase academic growth through periodic assessments, as well as the Wisconsin Alternate

Assessment (WAA) for eligible students with special needs and for eligible English Language Learners (ELLs) in the same manner, time frame, and at the same grade levels as the MPS non-chartered schools.

- , and analyzing results for instructional modification;
- (C) Utilize differentiated teaching strategies that can help to meet the needs of individual students:
- (D) Serve students with Individual Educational Plans according to the goals written in their IEPs, through collaboration with regular education teachers;
- (E) Maintain a student to instructional staff ratio of approximately 25:2 (teacher and paraprofessional) in K4 through 3rd grade and 25:1 in grades 4-8;
- (F) Employ instructional best practices in literacy and mathematics.

GOAL 2- SCHOOL CLIMATE: To maintain a safe, nurturing and positive learning community that continually fosters the core values of respect and responsibility for both students and staff.

Goal Statement: Demonstrate an improved suspension rate by 2% compared to the previous school year for all learners as measured by Office Discipline Referrals (ODR) from Data Dashboard.

Methods to achieve goal two:

- (A) Communicate and implement school wide behavior policies and procedures effectively so that the identified procedures are followed, reinforced and dealt with consistently among all staff members, and students are taught collaborative/cooperative behaviors;
- (B) Establish a proactive, progressive behavior management system that emphasizes student incentives to motivate students and increase time on task in the classroom;
- (C) Incorporate reflective practices (restorative justice circles, meditation) into the curriculum in order to promote healthy lifestyles.
- (D) Monthly reviews of incident referrals and suspension data by grade level, teachers, and infraction in an effort to identify patterns, incident locations (i.e. bus incidents, cafeteria, etc.), and professional learning.

(C)

GOAL 3- PARENT COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT: To implement/maintain a model of school, family, and community partnerships that is designed to engage, guide, energize, and motivate students to produce their own academic and behavioral successes.

Goal statement 3: By the end of May 2022, MESA will increase parent and family engagement from 40% to 80% as measured by Families and Schools Together (FAST) annual parent survey, attendance from bi-monthly Parent Leadership Meeting (PLM), parent attendance from student led conferences, winter program, Black History Program, parent classroom volunteers, new parent orientation, parent resource room usage, and exit interviews.

Methods to achieve goal three:

(A) The Dean of Family Engagement, office staff, and/or the scholar's teachers will create multiple opportunities for families to volunteer their time and participate in school activities.

Formatted: Indent: Left: -0.13", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black

- (A)(B) Assist families, where necessary, to establish home environments to support their children academically, socially and emotionally;
- (B)(C) Create opportunities for families to understand and participate in their child(ren)'s social and academic development through the decision-making process regarding school goals and objectives, and school programming and
- (C)(D) Engage parents in working directly with their children on learning activities at home, and provide ideas to families about how to help students with homework and other curriculum-related materials:
- (D)(E) Provide family support programs to assist families with health, nutrition, and other services.
- (E)(F) Listen and learn from parents/guardians and community as partners in our school.
- **GOAL 4- ENVIRONMENTAL LITERACY:** Prepare students to understand, analyze, and address the major environmental sustainability challenges facing Wisconsin, the United States, and the world

Methods to achieve goal four:

- (A) Provide field experiences, onsite as well as in our community, as part of the regular school curriculum, and create programs that contribute to healthy lifestyles through outdoor recreation and sound nutrition;
- (B) Incorporate STEAM and project based learning into the environmental sustainability curriculum;
- (C) Provide individuals a set of values and feelings of concern for the environment, and the motivation to actively participate in protecting the environment;
- (D) Provide awareness of The Tbilisi Declaration (UNESCO, Tbilisi Declaration, 1978) which includes the following: "To foster clear awareness of, and concern about, economic, social, political and ecological interdependence in urban and rural areas; To provide every person with opportunities to acquire the knowledge, values, attitudes, commitment and skills needed to protect and improve the environment; To create new patterns of behavior of individuals, groups and society as a whole towards the environment."
- GOAL 5: TECHNOLOGY- To integrate and utilize technology as a tool to improve academic achievement and teacher effectiveness.

Methods to achieve goal five:

- (A) Demonstrate creative thinking, construct knowledge, and develop innovative products and processes using technology;
- (B) Use digital media and environments to communicate and work collaboratively to support individual learning and contribute to the learning of others;
- (C) Apply digital tools to gather, evaluate, and use information.
- G. The method by which pupil progress in attaining the educational goals under s. 118.01 will be measured. (Referenced in 118.01) Include local assessment measures as Appendix J.

We will administer the examinations under Wis. Stat. §§ 118.30(1r) and 121.02(1)(r) to pupils enrolled in our school which is the state based assessment measure MESA will also administer the Wisconsin Alternate Assessment (WAA) to all students three times per year to help provide data that can be used to drive instruction in each classroom and measure growth of students in our educational program. We also will be using a report card that is based on the Wisconsin Core Standards. The Wisconsin Core Standards describe what a student should know and be able to do

at each grade level in all subjects. The report card also provides information on a child's work habits, behavior, and effort.

H. School Governing Body: The governance structure of the school, including the method to be followed by the school to ensure parental involvement and the plan for addressing parental concerns. {Referenced in 9.12 Administrative Procedure 9.12 (g)(1)}:

The MTEC Board of Directors will oversee the development of the school's policies and procedures, fundraising, approve the budget. In conjunction with the MTEC Board, MTEC Executive Director, and school community will hire the school principal, while the MTEC Executive Director will serve as the direct supervisor and evaluate the MESA principal. The MTEC board's by-laws state it can have between 5 and 30 members serving two-year terms with the current board consisting of 8 members.

The school administrators will oversee the day-to-day leadership and management of the educational program which will include addressing any parental concerns. Most of the concerns should be able to be resolved after reviewing our policies and procedures. In the rare case it cannot be resolved by the administration, a parent can request in writing to have the MTEC Executive Director review the dispute

Our school will have a school advisory council consisting of: (4) parents/guardians of students (one from each level); (1) MTEC administrator; (2) school staff members; (2) students; (1) community member, and (1) school administrator with no faction having a controlling interest. Our school council is committed to increased academic outcomes for our students through decisions made by consensus, democratic vote or advisement to the administrators. For the (2) students participating on the council, one will be from the 5th grade and the other from the middle school level.

I. Subject to sub. (7)(a) and (am) and ss. 118.19(1) and 121.02(1)(a)2., the certifications and qualifications that must be met by the individuals to be employed in the school. {Referenced in 118.19(1) and 121.02(1)(a)2}

All school personnel for whom licensure is required under Wis.Stat.§§ 118.19(1) and 121.02(1)(a)2 shall hold a license or permit to teach issued by the Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction (DPI). In addition, all guidelines of the Every Student Succeeds Act legislation will be followed when hiring staff.

We will utilize the **Center for Inspired Teaching** screening tools to hire teacher, administrators, and other staff. Center for Inspired Teaching has a direct impact on students by training their teachers to provide high quality, engaging instruction. Central to Inspired Teaching's professional development is a process that encourages teachers to rethink their role in the classroom, from information provider to Instigator of Thought. Inspired Teaching is rooted in the belief that every student possesses the ability to think critically, learn and understand information, and solve complex problems, and that students should spend their time in school engaged primarily in these kinds of activities. It is the teacher's responsibility to find or create a way to reach every student. The teacher-student relationship and the relationship of the principal with teachers and students are essential and the Inspired principles closely align with the EL model and overarching organizational belief system of MTEC.

J. The procedures and requirements that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of the pupils, including identifying steps to address safety concerns that may arise.

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School will comply with all applicable building, fire and health codes. Students will be provided with a healthy breakfast, lunch

and snacks (extended day program) following all city, state and federal guidelines. Future plans include growing various items for consumption as part of our sustainability curriculum.

K. Describe the targeted student population and the strategies, procedures and requirements by which the school will welcome and recruit a student body diverse in race, language, economic status and special education needs reflective of the school district population.

It is our goal to develop a diverse school community culturally and ethnically that reflects our global society exploring language, social differences and cultural beliefs, resulting in respect for differences. Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School will conduct a public information campaign and multi-media campaign to ensure that all eligible pupils are aware of the opportunity to participate in its program.

Staggered grade levels and early childhood - Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School will begin with kindergarten through 5^{th} grade, and expand a grade level each year to grade 8 with two classes at each grade level, K4-5 (approximately 350 students). The addition of a grade level each year, will provide the added benefit of monitoring closely our diversity and help us focus our recruitment in that area.

The procedures and requirements for admission to the school will be in accordance with Federal guidelines. Sibling preference will also be used.

Include the following appendices: Appendix E Diversity Plan, and Appendix F Special Education Plan that describes the means by which the charter school will include pupils with special needs, including pupils whose special education needs are other than speech and language only, in the charter school's pupil population.

L. Enrollment and grade level distribution chart that shows grades and enrollment numbers for each year of the contract term.

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy will begin with kindergarten through grade 5 for the 2013-2014 school year, and expand one grade level each year to grade 8, with two classes at each grade level, K4-5 (approximately 350 students

ENROLLMENT AND GRADE LEVEL DISTRIBUTION CHART

		Year 1			Year 2			Year 3	3	Year 4		
	20		3 – 2014		2014 – 2015		2015 - 2016		2016 - 2017)17	
G r a d e	C – a s s e s	St udentsperclass	St ud en ts pe r gr ad e	C – a s s e s	St u d e nt s p er cl a ss	St u d e nt s p er gr a d e	C la s s e s	St ud ent s per cla ss	Stud ents per grad e	C I a s s e s	Stud ents per class	Stud ents per grad e
4K	_	٥٢			_			05	50		0.5	50
4K 5K	2	25 25	50 50	2	2 25	50 50	2 2	25 25	50 50	2	25 25	50 50
1	2	25	50	2	25 25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50 50
2	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
3	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
4	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
5	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
6				2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
7							2	25	50	2	25	50
8					i					2	25	50
Total			350			400			450			500

		Year 5			Year 6			Year 7			Year 8	
	20	17 – 20)18	20	18 – 20	19	20	19 - 20	20	20	21 - 20	22
Gr ad e	C la s s e s	S tu d e nt s p e r cl a s s	S tu d e nt s p e r g r a d e	C la s s e s	S tu d e nt s p e r cl a s s	S tu d e nt s p e r g r a d e	C la s s e s	S tu d e nt s p e r cl a s s	S tu d e nt s p e r g r a d e	C la s s e s	S tu d e nt s p e r cl a s s	S tu d e nt s p e r g r a d e
4K	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
5K	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
1	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50

2	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
3	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
3	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
5	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
6	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
7	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50
8	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50	2	25	50

Total	500	500	500	500

M. A complete proposed budget is attached to this proposal as Appendix G. (Contact the MPS Finance Department for the templates.) If other funding sources besides the per pupil amount, including grants are being sought to supplement the charter school, include the name of the grant, the duration of the grant and plans for sustainability if/when the grant funds end.

Proposed MTEC Charter School Budget FY2013-14

> c. Special Education d. Foreign Language (Spanish)

e. Fine Arts (Music, Art, Phy Ed, Reflective Practices)

		FY2013	FY2013
	Per Student	Projected	Projected
Revenue	Rate	Students	Budget
State Funding	7,750	405	3,138,750
MPS Administrative Fee (3%)			(94,163)
Subtotal			3,044,588
Implementation Grant			250,000
Head Start			
Special Ed Reimbursement			
Title I Funding			
Net Revenue			3,294,588
Expenses		FY2013	FY2013
	Average	Projected	Projected
Instructional Costs	Rate	Staff/FTE	Budget
Regular Education			
1. Classroom teachers			
a. General	50,000	16	800,000
b. Science	50,000	1	50,000
c. Special Education	50,000	3	150,000

50,000

50,000

0.50

1.50

25,000

75,000

d. Fringe Benefits (30%)			330,000
2. Additional Selected Staffa. Paraprofessionals (25 hrs = 1 FTE)b. Part time wages	13,500	18	243,000 10,000
Special Services			
1. Teachers			
a. Diagnostic			
b. Speech Language (30hrs = 1FTE)	43,200	0.50	21,600
2. School Psychologist (30 hrs. = 1FTE)	43,200	0.50	21,600
3. School Social Worker (30hrs = 1 FTE)	43,200	0.50	21,600
		FY2013	FY2013
	Per Student	Projected	Projected
Supplies and Materials	Rate	Students	Budget
1. Educational Supplies/Textbooks	500	405	202,500
2. Non-textbooks - Library			2,000
3. Learning Software			25,000
		FY2013	FY2013
	Average	Projected	Projected
Non-Instructional Costs	Rate	Staff/FTE	Budget
1. Administrative Staff			
a. Principal	75,000	1	75,000
b. Dean of Students	60,000	1	60,000
c. Director of Instruction d. Parent Coordinator	60,000 40,000	0.50	60,000 20,000
e. Fringe Benefits (30%)	40,000	0.50	64,500
or range Benefits (5075)			01,500
2. Office Staff			
a. Lead Secretary	25,000	1	35,000
b. General Education Assistant (40hrs =1FTE)	17,280	1	17,280
c. Accounting/Financial	0	0	30,000
d. Fringe Benefits (30%)			24,684
3. Additional Selected Staff			
a. School Safety Assistant	25,000	1	25,000
b. School nurse	50,000	0.20	10,000
c. Food service	,		41,000
d. Fringe Benefits (30%)			19,800
Building Operations Staff			
1. Maintenance Staff	30,000	1.50	45,000
2. Fringe Benefits (30%)	50,000	1.50	13,500
Purchased Services			
1. Consultants/Contracted Services			20,000
2. Staff Development			20,000
21			

2. External (Non-MPS) Printing Service	5,000
, , ,	,
3. Field Trips	15,000
4. Insurance - General Liability	35,000
5. IT Services (Telephones, Internet, etc.)	12,000
6. Legal/Accting	5,000
7. Other Expenses	15,000
8. Postage	3,023
9. Pupil Transportation	70,000
10. Travel	4,000
11. Utilities/Maintenance (Gas, electric, water)	309,000

	Average	FY2013 Projected	FY2013 Projected
Supplies and Materials	Rate	Staff/FTE	Budget
1. Office Supplies			25,000
2. Building/Cleaning Supplies			6,000
Capital Expenses			
1. Minor Building Modifications			5,000
2. Additional Equipment			10,000
3. Replacement Equipment			10,000
4. Equipment Rental			5,000
5. Building Leases (To be determined)			0
6. Technology Lease/Purchase			30,000
7. Copier leases			9,000
8. Building Repairs			8,000

Total Expenses 3,139,087

Net Revenues In Excess of Expenditures

155,501

N. The manner in which annual audits of the financial and programmatic (performance and compliance) operation of the school will be performed is as follows:

A financial and academic achievement audit will be conducted annually per state requirements. The school shall submit audited financial statements of the charter school's operation including an audited list of the revenues, the auditor's management letters and any exceptions noted by the auditors, annually beginning after the first full year. The audit reports shall be prepared by a certified public accountant and submitted within 120 days after the end of the grantee's fiscal year on June 30th.

O. The procedures for disciplining pupils. If the charter school will have its own discipline policy, attach it as Appendix H.

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School will utilize its own discipline policy that aligns with the MPS Parent/Student Handbook on Rights, Responsibilities and Discipline and also complies with all Wisconsin statutes when disciplining students. In addition, we will develop a parent/guardian student compact that will be signed at the time of admission to our

school. Since parental/guardian engagement is essential to a successful school, a minimum number of hours of participation will be required for each family. A parent satisfaction survey will be conducted annually.

- P. The public school alternatives for pupils who reside in the school district and do not wish to attend or are not admitted to the charter school.
 - Under Wis. Stat.§ 118.40(6), no pupil may be required to attend the charter school. Students who reside in the district and do not wish to attend the charter school remain eligible to attend the district's schools.
- Q. A description of the school facilities and the types and limits of the liability insurance that the school will carry. If you have a site, identify the facility/location. If planning a shared facility, provide information regarding arrangements necessary for space accommodations/needs.
 Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School will adhere to all Federal, State, and Municipal laws and regulations and to the MPS Board of School Directors' insurance and risk management requirements. Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School will provide MPS with an insurance certificate before our school opens and will be insured in accordance with the mandates of the district. The certificate of insurance or policies of insurance evidencing all coverage will include a statement that MPS will be afforded a 30 day written notice of cancellation, nonrenewal or material change by any of charter school insurers providing coverage required by MPS.

ACORD CERTIFICATE	OF LIABIL	ITY IN	SURA	NCE	11/3	MW007777) 28/2011
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFO CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGAT BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES I REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFIC	NOT CONSTITUTE A (CONTRACT E	ETWEEN T	HE ISSUING INSURER	(S), AL	THORIZED
MPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAl the lerms and conditions of the policy, certain policies of		(les) must be ment. A stat	endorsed. ement on thi	if SUBROGATION IS W is cartificate does not c	AIVED anfer r	subject to ighte to the
pertificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).	3800 CONTA		lonzoa			
bur J. Gallagher Risk Hanagement Services,	Inc. PHONE	o.Eug: 815-53	9-1004	FAX (A/C, No).	815-5	39-6707
pierco Place	ADDRE	ss: jana r	оптония ју	. con		
		ina	IRER(3) AFFOR	DING COVERAGE		MAIS
asca , TL 60143-3141 na Montos	INSURE	RA: TRAVEL	ERS IND CO	OF CT		25682
ureo	KSUR	R B : TRAVEL	BRE IND CO			25658
wankee Teacher Education Cepter, Inc. Paulette Litkowski	KSUR	RC ACULTY	Y MOL INS	ÇD		14184
7 W 12th Street	Nauro	R 0 :		0.500		
te 100	INSUR				-	10.7
Lyaukes, WI 53233-1307	PASILIZ	RF:			-	_
VERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMB HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE, DOCCATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERMIFICATE WAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE LAST	ISTED BELOW HAVE BEE	N ISSUED TO Y CONTRACT THE POLICIES	THE INSURE OR OTHER D	REVISION NUMBER: D NAMED ABOVE FOR T DUCUMENT WITH RESPE) HEREIN IS SUBJECT T	HE FOL OT TO	CY PERIO WHICH TH THE TERM
XCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SOCIFICACION CINTER OF	- TOTTI CHARLE THAT I DECIN	POUCY SEF		LINE		
TYPE OF INSURANCE INSURANCE IN THE INSUR	POLICY HIMBER 048565	10/20/13	10/20/12	EACH-OCCUERRENCE	age of the	00,000
ISCHIDOL CIMBERT	V-2-4-8-2	203 203 20		PHEMISES (Se popularion)	\$ 100	
COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY				MED EXP (Arry ora person)	\$ 5,0	
CLANS-MADE X GCCUR				PERSONAL & ADVISURY		00,000
				GENERAL AGGREGATE	5 2,0	00,00
				FREDUCTS - COMPAGE AGO		20,000
GENT ADGREGATE UNIT APPLIES FOR:				PRODUCTO CONTEST PAGE	5	
X POLICY PRO- LECT LOC TORONS	04B566	10/20/11	15/26/12	COMBAND SINGLE LIMIT (Eginockent)	e 1.0	00,000
AUTOWODILE LWSILITY		İ		ECRE Y INJUNY (Per person)	5	
ANY AUTO		1		SODILY INJURY (Per secident)	9	
ALLOWNED SCHEDULED AUTOS V NON-KIANED				PROPERTY BAMAGE of a scode for	5	
HRED AUTOS X AUTOS		1		V. N. Bellion III	8	
Y DWERFILATIAS X OCCUP ISYCUT	25187096	10/20/11	10/20/12	SACH OCCURRENCE	5 4,0	00,000
EXCESSION CLAMS-VADE		11,11,11		AGGREGATE	\$ 4.0	00,000
OED X RETENTIONS 5,000		1			5	
WORKERS COMPENSATION 917034	1	20/20/13	10/20/12	X WOSTATU. OTHE		
	-			EL GACHACCIDENT	\$ 500	,090
AND EMPLOYERS LIABLITY OFFICER MINNER EXCLUDED? (Mandakory M.HH)				BL. DISEASE - BA FMPLOYE		
I was describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS by by				EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	\$ 500	,000
DESCRIPTION OF DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY OF						
SCRPTON OF OTHERTOMS (LOCATIONS (VEHICLES MANCH ACRES OF INSURAN PUBLIC Schools are shown so addition decoded herein as required by written contra	al insureds solely	with reco	act to gan	eral liability cow be maned insureds.	erage	ac
ERTIFICATE HOLDER		CELLATION				
lwankee Public Schools	TH	E EXPIRATION	DATE THE	ESCRIBED POLICIES BE I EREOF, NOTICE WILL BY PROVISIONS.	BE DE	LEO BEFOI LIVERED
25 W. Viist Street	AUTHO	OR ZED REPRESS	NTATIVE			1000
D Box 2181						
lwaukes, WI 53201-4181 USA				inhad P. Per		
		₽ 19	88-2010 AC	ORD CORPORATION.	All rig	hts reser
ACORD 25 [2010/05] The ACORD (name and logo are reg				Allrig	nts res

Our school plans are to lease a facility from Milwaukee Public Schools.

R. The effect of the establishment of the charter school on the liability of the school district.

- a) The school district shall not be liable to any person not a party to this contract on account of the establishment or operation of the charter school. Further, the school district assumes no obligation with respect to any officer, director, employee, agent, parent, guardian, student, or independent contractor of the charter school, or any other persons receiving services from or doing business with the charter school.
- b) The parties agree that nothing contained in this contract will create any association, partnership, or joint venture between the parties, or any employer-employee relationship between the School District and the charter school.
- S. The following policies including procedure to inform parents:
 - a) School transportation policy: A transportation policy is pending the site selection. Included
 in our future transportation policy, students with an IEP indicating transportation will be
 transported.
 - b) *School nutrition policy:* The school will offer a breakfast and lunch program along with an extended day snack. Parents will be informed of how to apply for free and reduced meals.
- T. Indicate whether the proposed charter school wishes to be an instrumentality or non-instrumentality charter school. Indicate if the school is submitting a petition or proposal. All petitions should attach the signatures as Appendix I.

Our charter school proposal is for a non-instrumentality.

U. Indicate the school year that the charter status is requested to begin, and length (1 to 5 years) of the contract term sought.

A five-year charter contract is requested beginning with the 2013-2014 school year.

III. APPENDICES
APPENDIX A: TENTATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL CALENDAR



Milwaukee Teacher Education Center

2013-2014 School Calendar

S M T W T F S 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31	July 4 NO SCHOOL	January 1-10 NO SCHOOL— Winter Intercession 9-10 Teacher Professional Development 20 NO SCHOOL— Martin Luther King Jr. 21 Start of New Semester	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	August 5 First day for students	February 17 NO SCHOOL- Mid Semester Break	February 2014 S M T W T F S 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	September 2 NO SCHOOL- Labor Day	March 21 NO SCHOOL- Parent Teacher Conference	March 2014 S M T W T F S 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	October 3-4 Parent Teacher Conferences 4-25 NO SCHOOL- Fall Intercession 7-8 Teacher Professional Development	April 14-25 NO SCHOOL- Spring Intercession	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	November 27-29 NO SCHOOL- Thanksgiving Break	May 26 NO SCHOOL- Memorial Day	S M T W T F S 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31
S M T W T F S 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31	December 21-31 NO SCHOOL- Winter Intercession	June 13 Student's Last Day 16-17 Teacher Professional Development 17 Teacher's Last Day	S M T W T F S 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 12 12 14 15 16* 17* 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

APPENDIX B: STUDENT DAY START AND END TIMES TENTATIVE STUDENT DAY

8:30 a.m. School begins for grades K4-8 3:45p.m. Dismissal for grades K4-8

APPENDIX C: UNIFORM POLICY

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School, requires all scholars to follow a school uniform/dress code policy. A school uniform policy helps focus scholars on their school work rather than their appearance, encourages school identify, pride, and solidarity between scholars.

All scholars shall wear their uniforms daily. The school will ensure compliance with the school uniform policy using incentives and issuing consequences when scholars are not in compliance.

Uniform Violation Protocols

Each time scholars will lose points (each violation results in a two point uniform deduction)

First offense- two point deduction (warning)

Second offense- two point deduction (parent contact via telephone)

Third offense- two point deduction (scholar will be held out of class until the uniform violation is resolved, i.e. parent drop off of uniform or shirt-on-loan)

Fourth offense- two point deduction (referral to administration for follow up)

Offenses will reset at the start of a new trimester.

Uniform Policy

K4-5th Grade

- A. Bottoms
 - Solid tan/navy blue/khaki pants
 - Solid tan/navy blue/khaki walking shorts/skorts/skirts (knee length when standing)
 - Worn at the waist (no sagging)
 - Belts or suspenders are required of all scholars wearing bottoms with belt loops
 - Navy or white tights or socks
 - B) Tops
 - MESA lime green polo with school insignia (for purchase at MESA)
 - Tucked in at the waist
 - Cold weather tops- scholars may wear navy blue or white cardigans, (optional with school insignia for purchase at MESA)

C) Shoes

Closed toe shoes (any color)

Middle School

- A. Bottoms
 - Solid tan/navy blue/khaki pants
 - Solid tan/navy blue/khaki walking shorts/skorts/skirts (knee length when standing)
 - Worn at the waist (no sagging)
 - Belts or suspenders are required of all scholars wearing bottoms with belt loops
 - · Navy or white tights or socks
 - B) Tops

- Monday/Wednesday/Friday: MESA light blue polo with school insignia (for purchase at MESA)
- Tuesday/Thursday: MESA oxford style dress shirts with tie (for purchase at MESA)
- · Tucked in at the waist
- Cold weather tops- scholars may wear navy blue or white cardigans (optional with school insignia for purchase at MESA)

C) Shoes

- Monday/Wednesday/Friday: closed toe shoes (any color)
- Tuesday/Thursday: Solid black dress shoes (not casual)

APPENDIX D: IF AN INSTRUMENTALITY, A LIST OF MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING THE CHARTER SCHOOL MAY SEEK TO IMPLEMENT ITS EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM. N/A

APPENDIX E: DIVERSITY PLAN

It is our goal to develop a diverse school community culturally and ethnically that reflects our global society exploring language, social differences and cultural beliefs, resulting in respect for differences. Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a Milwaukee Teacher Education Center Charter School will conduct a focused recruitment campaign to ensure that all eligible pupils are aware of the opportunity to participate in its program.

Any student residing in the City of Milwaukee is eligible to attend our school with a preference given to neighborhood children. When capacity levels have been reached, parents expressing an interest for their children will be placed on a waiting list.

As part of the admission process, every attempt will be made to determine if our educational program is the most appropriate setting to meet the needs of the student and family. Consideration will be given to the following factors:

- Opportunity for sibling enrollment;
- Geographic proximity:
- Willingness of family to actively participate in the school's educational program;
- Current assessed educational needs and opportunity to progress within the available resources of our educational program.

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy will adhere to all MPS guidelines and policies regarding student assignment and will not impose admission requirements that are inconsistent with MPS policies and guidelines. If Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy does not have seats for all students who apply during the application periods, a random selection process (lottery) for enrollment shall be used.

APPENDIX F: SPECIAL EDUCATION PLAN

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy is committed to serving students with disabilities and will comply with all the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act. Students with disabilities will be included in regular education classes for academic and non-academic subjects. A continuum of educational services will be provided to accommodate students with a range of service levels from restrictive to resource, based on each student's Individual Education Plan. A tentative continuum of special education services is as follows:

Consulting Teacher Services: Consulting teacher services are defined as indirect services provided by a certified special education teacher to a general education teacher in adjusting the learning environment and/or modifying his/her instructional methods using specially designed instructional strategies to meet the individual needs of a student with a disability receiving instruction in the general education classroom.

Co-Teaching Services: Co-teaching services are defined as the provision of specially designed instruction and academic instruction provided to a group of students with disabilities and nondisabled students. The special education teacher provides these services and general education teacher in partnership to meet the content and skills needs of students in the general education classroom. These services take shape in a variety of manners. For example, teachers co-plan, divide the class, and provide the instruction to smaller groups, or teachers co-plan and then co-instruct different components of the content.

Collaborative Services: a certified special education teacher in a general defines collaborative services education classroom to aid the student(s) in accessing the general education curriculum. These services are provided simultaneously with the general education content area instruction.

Pull-Out Services: Pull-out services are defined as direct specially designed instruction provided to an individual student with a disability or a group of students with disabilities by a certified special education teacher to provide supplementary instruction that cannot otherwise be provided during the student's regular instruction time. These services are provided in an individual or small group setting for a portion of the day. Pull-out services supplement the instruction provided in the general education classroom through consulting teacher services or collaborative/co-teaching services. The specially designed instruction provided in pull-out settings does **not** supplant the instruction provided in the general education classroom.

* Paraprofessionals may provide some, but not all, instruction in the general education and special education classroom. This instruction is always under the direction of the special education teacher. There should be consultative services, to some extent, even if a paraprofessional is assigned full-time to a general education classroom.

We also believe the science focus, the use of strategies such as looping, creating and building relationships, hands-on activities, and field experiences leads to a more productive way of educating students with special needs. Regular education and special education teachers will collaborate on modifying and individualizing instruction. The special education team will be responsible for writing, implementing, and assessing objectives for Individual Education Plans. In the non-academic areas and to the extent possible in academic areas based on the student's IEP, integration will be with peers at the appropriate grade level. Individual Education Plans will be the guidelines for integration of students with disabilities, with regular education students.

APPENDIX G: CHARTER SCHOOL PROPOSED BUDGET AND OPTIONAL SERVICES FORM (See Attached)

APPENDIX H: CHARTER SCHOOL DISCIPLINE POLICY

Discipline is a process that uses teaching, modeling, and other appropriate strategies to maintain the behaviors necessary to ensure a safe, orderly, and productive learning environment by changing unacceptable behavior to acceptable behavior.

The purpose of the Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy Discipline Plan is to encourage and support appropriate student behavior throughout the school including the classrooms, hallways, restrooms, playground, cafeteria, gym, media center, music room, assemblies, field trips, etc. A core component to the Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy curriculum is to role model, teach, practice, and praise appropriate behavior in the areas of work ethic/effort, respect for authority, and appropriate social interactions/conflict resolution. In conjunction with a school wide Disciplinary Plan, the school will also maintain a consistent positive behavior recognition plan that will outline frequent, tangible rewards that the children can be part of or earn. We will solicit donations and plan motivating activities/field trips.

- A primary purpose of the plan is to support and maintain a safe and orderly environment in all
 areas of the school. This is done through the establishment and clear communication of student
 behavior expectations supported by a consistent and fair structure, including rewards and
 consequences.
- While implementing this plan, school staff will be aware of and accommodate for individual student disabilities and challenges. Individualized behavior plans may be developed for some students.

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School, focuses on developing a school environment that balances safety and structure within a caring, supportive school community. Scholars work together to solve problems, including problems related to conflicts and behavior challenges. We believe that scholars' growth as kind and respectful citizens requires becoming active members of a caring community, with a focus on using problem solving and decision-making so they can work towards handling conflicts that arise in the best way possible.

When scholars engage in challenging work, receive academic support, and are held to the school's high behavioral expectations, they are less likely to disrupt the class. Our focus on character and academics and our use of multiple approaches to classroom management-- including teacher presence, norming, routines, open communication, and PBIS (positive behavior intervention systems)--address discipline problems in a respectful way.

Discipline Procedures

Our school believes in proactive discipline and providing scholars with skills to solve problems and work collaboratively. When necessary, the following procedures will be used to address misbehavior based on the seriousness of the situation:

- social conferences between scholar and teacher
- · removal from the group within the classroom
- removal from the classroom to meet with the Dean of Students for redirection and reflection with the goal of being restored to return to the classroom
- detention (lunch or afterschool)
- conferences between scholar, teacher, and parent(s)/guardian(s) (these may include the Principal and/or the Dean of Students, as needed)
- suspension
- expulsion

In all disciplinary matters, scholars will be given notice and will have the opportunity to present their version of the facts and situation leading to the imposition of disciplinary sanctions to the staff member imposing such sanctions. The latter half of the list (suspension, expulsion) is enacted in cases involving the health and safety of oneself or others, or continuous misbehavior which disrupts the educational program. Parents/guardians will be notified in writing in all cases of suspension. For a complete description of the school's discipline policy and procedures, please contact the Principal or Dean of Students.

Discipline Plan

As an EL Education (Expeditionary Learning) school, a core component to the Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a Charter School of MTEC, and curriculum is to create opportunities for scholars to explore new ideas, collaborate with peers, and take risks as they push themselves to achieve at high levels. This can only happen when scholars feel safe emotionally and physically. Therefore we have strong expectations for behavior.

The purpose of MESA's Discipline Plan is to encourage and support appropriate scholar behavior throughout the school including the classrooms, hallways, restrooms, playgrounds, cafeteria, gym, media center, music room, assemblies, fieldwork, etc. in order to maintain a safe and supportive environment for learning AND help scholars develop into respectful and considerate human beings.

All adults in the building will be expected to serve as role models for behavior that is respectful and supportive. Staff will teach, practice, and praise appropriate behavior as reflected in the Habits of Scholarship: respect, integrity, social justice, collaboration, perseverance and accountability.

In conjunction with a school-wide Discipline Plan, the school will maintain a consistent positive behavior recognition plan that will outline frequent, tangible, rewards that children are a part of or earn. As much as possible, these "rewards" will inspire intrinsic motivation, as needed in the "real" world. We will occasionally ask for donations and assistance in planning motivating activities.

- Misbehavior will be treated as a learning opportunity for both scholars and teachers.
- Staff will seek to understand the nature of the misbehavior or conflict, consequences will be logical, and clearly communicated.
- Positive behavior will occur through the establishment and clear communication of scholars = behavior expectations supported by a consistent and fair structure.
- While implementing this plan, MESA staff will be aware of and accommodate for individual scholar disabilities and challenges. Individualized behavior plans may be developed for some scholars.

K4-5th Behavior System

In each crew from K4-5th grade scholars will be using a color coded behavior system.

Purple	Excellent; Has shown 3 of the 6 Habits of Scholarship: integrity, respect, social justice, collaboration, perseverance, and accountability
Green	Good; The starting point for each day
Yellow	Redirection
Orange	Parent contact
Red	Scholar Referral/Dean Contact

ClassDojo

ClassDojo is used to keep parents/guardians informed of their scholar's behavior, as well as character expectations including uniforms, homework, and conduct. Teachers may share photos from class, important updates and wonderful moments. Additionally, we use ClassDojo so that scholars are regularly recognized and awarded for demonstrating strong character, academic effort, and achievement. Our six Habits of Scholarship include integrity, respect, accountability, social justice, perseverance, and collaboration. ClassDojo is also used to track unacceptable behaviors including, but not limited to disrespect, disruptions to the learning environment, use of profanity, failure to turn in homework, and uniform infractions. Extreme or recurring inappropriate behavior will be handled at the administrative level. If you have not been issued a Parent Letter from your child's teacher, please contact them immediately so that you can stay connected.

How Do Scholars Earn Points:

- Uniform (1 point)
- Homework submission (1 point) (all assigned work must be fully completed-partial completion
 or missing full assignments will result in a loss of a point)
- Attendance (1 point)
- Scholars can earn points from all teachers and staff for modeling our 6 habits of scholarship which are integrity, respect, accountability, social justice, perseverance, and collaboration

School Based Incentives for Scholars will be awarded by the Dean of Students and include some of the following:

- Dance parties
- Special treats
- Dress Down Days
- Field trips
- Popcorn/Ice Cream/Pizza parties

Scholars who meet or exceed the school-wide goal will qualify for the incentives. The incentive dates will be shared in our parent newsletter including the names of scholars who qualify for participation. See below for school goal.

School-wide Goal

Parents have access to log into ClassDojo, and to view the percentage of positive and negative points. The positive points are displayed in green, while the negative points are shown in red. You will be able to view, specifically, how many points were given or deducted and for what reason. At Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School, our school-wide goal is for each scholar to maintain a positive point percentage of 85%. Please refer to the rubric.

Excellent	95%-100%
Good	85%-94%
Mediocre	60%-84%
Needs Immediate Improvement	40%-59%
Serious Concern (Danger)	0%-39%

How Do Scholars Accumulate Negative Points:

- Failure to wear FULL school uniform (-1 point)
- Absences (unexcused absences result in a loss of 1 point per day)
- Failure to turn in all homework on time. (-1 point)
- Scholars failing to model our 6 habits of scholarship, integrity, respect, accountability, social
 justice, perseverance, and collaboration risk losing points.

Administrative Actions for Office Referrals

Generally, the administrator will follow the continuum below. However, higher-level offenses will be dealt with greater measures of discipline.

- Meet with scholar to understand cause of behavior, discussion of future actions; possible family contact and/or probation (if severe).
- Parent(s)/guardian(s) contact to address behavior concern; detention or probation of detention; individual consequences specific to infraction: i.e. clean up, isolated lunch, additional work, apologies, restorative justice practices, etc.
- Parent(s)/guardian(s) conference; detention; suspension or pending suspension
- Suspension and parent/guardian conference; possible additional requirements to return to class; multiple days of suspension; parent/guardian conferences are required: scholar may be referred for placement in an alternative school or recommended for expulsion.

Levels of Infractions

- Level 1. This is the lowest level. The teacher or staff member in charge addresses the behaviors. The behaviors are not referred to the office, unless they are excessive in terms of damage, loss, disruption or injury; whereupon they become level 2 events. Any level 1 behavior that shows a pattern of repetition, despite teacher intervention, will be referred to the office as a level 2.
- Level 2. Moderate behaviors cannot go unaddressed. These behaviors may be referred to the
 office for administrative action. The administrator will choose actions based on the facts
 generally following the continuum below. Repeated behaviors will result in increased penalties
 and may be handled as level 3 behaviors. Behaviors that are excessive in terms of damage, loss,
 disruption or injury transfer to level 3 events.
- Level 3. This category is considered serious offenses. It includes dangerous, defiant and highly
 disruptive behaviors. Lower level acts that continue regardless of the best efforts of all
 interventions may be handled at level 3. Repeated behaviors at level 3 may result in
 recommendation to an alternative program or expulsion.
- Level 4. Most serious offenses, which may result in contacting and actions by law enforcement, charges being filed and/or removal of the scholar from Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School. This category includes repeated fights or assaults, assault on a staff member, possession of deadly weapons, and possession, sale or transfer of drugs.

Behavioral Violation Codes

TYPICAL BEHAVIORS ASSOCIATED WITH INFRACTION LEVEL

Level 1-3 Infractions

- Scholars show respect by refraining from throwing objects, teasing, name-calling or "just playing" in a physically aggressive manner.
- Scholars show respect by refraining from intimidating, threatening or using aggression.
- Scholars show respect by not using profanity or offensive gestures.
- Scholars walk in the building. They are not loud, disruptive or defiant in the cafeteria and throughout the entire building and on the grounds.
- Scholars refrain from the use of physical force (fighting).

- Scholars refrain from serious physical contact, specifically (but not limited to) punches, is strictly prohibited.
- Scholars refrain from engagement in harassment of any staff member or other scholars.
 This shall include, but not limited to: name calling, stories, jokes, pictures, or objects that are offensive to one's gender, race, color, natural origin, religion, or disability, unwanted touching, sexual comments, and spreading rumors.
- · Acts of retaliation
- Sexual harassment will result in an office referral. Repeated offenses may result in action
 by law enforcement.
- Scholars will not be in possession of any tobacco products. Students will not use tobacco
 products in the building or on the grounds.
- Scholars will leave all electronic devices and other valuable property at home, including, but not limited to; iPods/MP3 players, radios, electronic games, telecommunication devices, and toys. Items will be confiscated and returned to parents only.
- Scholars will not falsify documents or signatures. Scholars will not act deceptively or
 dishonestly; including a scholar copying another scholar's work and using it as his/her
 own or allowing a scholar to copy his/her work.
- Scholars will not steal.
- Scholars will not engage in games of chance involving money.
- Scholars will not engage in the destruction or defacement of public or personal property.
- Restitution may be required.
- Victims of aggression are required to report concerns to teacher(s) or administrators.

May be recommended for expulsion (Level 4):

- Scholars will not possess, use, be under the influence of, sell, or transfer alcoholic beverages, narcotics, drugs, counterfeit controlled substances, look-alike drugs, or other intoxicating substances, nor possess, sell, or transfer drug paraphernalia on school property, en route to or from school, or at any location of school-sponsored activity.
- Scholars will not possess fireworks or dangerous instruments, which include any instrument, article or substance, readily capable of causing death or serious physical injury. Dangerous instruments shall include pocket knives and knives of all types. Students shall not be in possession of a look-alike weapon.
- Scholars will not possess any deadly weapon from which a projectile, readily capable of
 producing death or other serious physical injury, may be discharged i.e. gun, any knife;
 nightstick, or other club; artificial knuckles made from metal, plastic, or other similar hard
 material
- Any egregious behaviors or offense deemed extremely inappropriate by the Principal

Notice of Suspension/ Expulsion

Notification of Suspension: Prior to any suspension, the scholar shall be advised of the reason for the proposed suspension. A letter from the Principal or Dean of Students will be sent to the scholar's parent(s)/guardian(s), when the scholar is assigned in-school suspension, or out-of-school suspension, or is recommended for expulsion.

Notice of In-School Suspension: The suspension notice for in-school suspension shall include at least the following information:

- Reason(s) for the suspension and date(s) of suspension are to be clearly stated
- A parent/guardian is required to participate in a conference with the Principal or Dean of Students in order for the scholar to be readmitted to the regular classroom

 The scholar will not be allowed to participate in classroom and school activities during the suspension period; and appeal procedures shall be clearly stated in detail.

Notice of Out-of-School Suspension

The suspension notice for out-of-school suspension (fewer than five days) shall include at least the following information:

- Reason(s) for the suspension and the date(s) of suspension are to be clearly stated
- A parent/guardian must come to school for a conference with the Principal or Dean of Students in order for the scholar to be readmitted to school
- The scholar will not be allowed to participate in classroom and school activities during the suspension period.
- The scholar is not to go on school property; appeal procedures shall be clearly stated.

Expulsion

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School, will act in accordance with Milwaukee Public Schools' policies and procedures regarding the expulsion of scholars.

Students with Disabilities

Students with disabilities may be disciplined, in accordance with the state and federal law, for inappropriate behavior.

School personnel may order a change in the placement of a child with a disability to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting, or suspend the child for not more than ten (10) days to the extent they could do so with a child without disabilities. (Note: A suspension for more than five (5) days for a child with a disability is available only if the Principal or his or her designee has recommended expulsion of the student to the Board.)

School personnel may order a change in placement to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting for the same amount of time that a non-disabled child would be subject to discipline, but for not more than forty-five (45) days if the child:

- i. Carries a weapon to school or to a school sponsored function; or
- ii. Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance at a school-sponsored function. In such cases, the district must develop or revise the child's functional behavioral assessment plan.

If the discipline for the special education child involves a change of placement for more than ten (10) days, e.g., an expulsion, then the school must hold an IEP meeting to determine whether the behavior was a manifestation of the child's disability.

- If the behavior was not a manifestation of the child's disability, the child may be subject
 to the same disciplinary actions as a non-disabled student, except the school must continue
 to provide an appropriate education to the child.
- ii. If the behavior was related to the child's disability, the child may not be subject to disciplinary action for periods longer than ten (10) school days.

A child who is not yet determined eligible for special education and related services may assert any of these protections in response to disciplinary actions if the school system had "knowledge" that the child was a child with a disability before the behavior incident. The school system is deemed to have knowledge if:

- The parent of the child has expressed concern in writing to school personnel that the child is in need of special education or related services;
- ii. Behavior or performance of the child demonstrates the need for such services;
- The parent of the child has requested an evaluation of the child for purposes of determining if the child is in need of special education or related services; or

iv. The teacher of the child, or other school personnel, expressed concern about the behavior or performance of the child to the director of special education or to other school personnel.

If a parent requests an evaluation of a regular education child who is suspended or expelled, the evaluation must be expedited. Pending the results of the evaluation, the child shall remain in the educational placement determined by school authorities.

Appeal Procedures

In-school Disciplinary Actions

Should a parent disagree with disciplinary action of the school other than out-of-school suspensions or expulsions, the parent may appeal as follows:

- Appeals should be made to the Principal by arranging an appointment or by writing the Principal.
- If the parent is dissatisfied with the result of the appeal to the Principal, the parent may appeal to the MTEC Executive Director or designee. Appeals must be filed in writing, within three school days of receipt by the parent of the Principal's notice of disciplinary action.

Out-of-School Suspension (five days or fewer)

- 1. Should the parent disagree with a suspension of five (5) consecutive days or fewer, the parent may appeal the decision of the school as follows:
- Appeal requests must be made in writing by the parent to the Principal. Such written request must be filed with the Principal within three school days of the notice of suspension, or the right to review and appeal is waived.
- If the parent is dissatisfied with the Principal's decision, he or she may appeal the decision to the MTEC Executive Director or designee by filing a written request of appeal within five school days or the right to further appeal is waived.
- 4. In cases of immediate appeal, if the Principal determines that the student's presence at school does not create a continuing danger to persons or property or an ongoing threat of disruption, the student may be allowed to continue in school on a regular basis until the appeal is considered. A favorable decision will allow the student to continue in school, whereas a decision supporting the Principal will require the student to serve the full days suspension beginning the next school day after receiving notice of the decision. In situations where the student is excluded during the appeal process and the appeal is ultimately favorable to the student, opportunity will be provided for the completion of make-up assignments.

Expulsions

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy, a MTEC Charter School, will act in accordance to Milwaukee Public Schools policies and procedures regarding the appeals process of scholars.

Interventions and Family Involvement Required

We promote a positive school culture and reward scholars for meeting our cultural expectations because it fosters a healthy school atmosphere and prepares them for college and career opportunities. We also rely on family support and involvement when school-wide interventions fail to result in positive behavioral outcomes for scholars. Parents are required to get involved and attend mandatory meetings at the following points.

- If a scholar's weekly average points drop below the 59% range, "needs immediate improvement" for two consecutive weeks within the current trimester, a parent must meet with the Dean of Students, scholar, and HR teacher.
- 2. If a scholar's daily points drop below 39%, three or more days within one school week, the parent must meet with the Dean of Students, scholar, and HR teacher
- If a scholar is absent 5 days from school (unexcused), parent/guardian must meet with the Dean of Students, scholar, and HR teacher
- 4. If a scholar is absent 10 days from school (unexcused), parent must meet with the Dean of Students, scholar, and HR teacher, Parent and Learning Liaison, and social worker. At this point a scholar may be retained. A referral to the district attorney may be made by the school.
- 5. If a scholar is absent 15 days from school (unexcused) parent must meet with the Dean of Students, scholar, and HR teacher, Parent and Learning Liaison, social worker, and Principal. A referral to the district attorney may be made. Scholar may be retained.

APPENDIX I: PETITION SIGNATURES, IF APPLICABLE (INSTRUMENTALITY SCHOOLS)

APPENDIX J: VITAE AND CONTACT INFORMATION OF THE SCHOOL LEADER(S) AND APPLICANT TEAM Our applicant team is quite large so we are providing you with three resumes more are available upon request.

Laci Coppins Robbins

Milwaukee Teacher Education Center 6737 W. Washington Street, Suite 1420 West Allis, WI 53214 811 N. Hawley Rd., Suite 110

Milwaukee, WI 53213 1307

Phone: (414) 342-1569 Fax: (414) 973-2359 Email: lcoppinsrobbins@mteconline.org

Tom McGinnity 811 N Hawley Rd, Suite 110 Milwaukee, WI 53213

SKILLS: Leader, collaborator, systems thinker, team-builder, change agent, networker EXPERIENCE:

EXPERIENCE:

1999 – Present Executive Director, Milwaukee Teacher Education Center (MTEC) – a comprehensive professional development center designed to support the school leaders and educators of our children in an urban setting.

- Licensed over 1,000 Milwaukee Public Schools' (MPS) teachers serving over 15,000 of our MPS children daily
- Oversight of research correlating teacher formation to student achievement
- Created a Masters Degree in Urban Education with a prominent action research component
- Supported growth of MTEC to become the largest AmeriCorps Project in the State of Wisconsin
- Developed the recruitment, selection and support process of Resident Teacher candidates resulting in an 87%+ retention rate
- Responded to MPS school leaders request for high quality, effective professional development by creating the Professional Learning Services over 150 retirees providing instructional coaching to area educators
- Developed partnerships with community, business, and institutions of higher education

Formatted: Font color: Auto

- Created the Center for Sustainability to address the tensions created by the inter-connectedness of environmental, economic and social equity systems
- Creator and convener of the Urban Food for Urban Schools a coalition committed to advocacy, education and practice making our food system more nutritious, sustainable and accessible for youth and families
- Incorporated online technology as a prominent component for delivering our program content (Desire to Learn, Teachscape, Tapped In, MPS Professional Support Portal, etc.)
- Chaired the MPS Professional Support Portal Project
- Member of MPS Information and Technology Strategic Plan Committee
- Granted teacher certification authority throughout the State of Wisconsin
- Amended and restated MTEC Bylaws to include serving any school in Wisconsin

1997—1999 Deputy Superintendent, Milwaukee Public Schools (MPS)

- Served as the chief educational administrator of the district in the absence of the Superintendent
- · Served as the chief academic officer of MPS
- Developed and implemented a Learning Framework that resulted in the highest state achievement scores for Milwaukee Public Schools' students in two decades
- Provided leadership and support for an aggressive Technology Plan utilizing e-rate resources
- Provided oversight for and assisted in the planning to build a \$70M replacement for Milwaukee Trade and Technical High School to shepherd technical education into the 21st century
- Served as Community Learning Centers' (CLC) principal investigator
- Acted as co-principal investigator of the Milwaukee Urban Systemic Initiative, a \$15M National Science Foundation initiative
- Gave energy and leadership to the creation of a community partnership effort that supports our students' academic achievement
- Developed an integrated, comprehensive grant seeking strategy: federal, state, and local

1992 — 1997 Principal, Grand Avenue School - Milwaukee Public Schools (MPS)

- Provided leadership for learning at Grand Avenue School, one of the most innovative, state-of-the-art schools in MPS
- Implemented duo program focus of Global Studies and Multiple Intelligences
- Attended and presented at Equity 2000 Principal Leadership meetings
- Nominated in 1994, in the school's third year in existence, as a National School of Excellence
- Created long-range technology plan to utilize/manage the existing \$2 million of technology as well as plan for the future technology needs
- Created and implemented a 40 community member collaboration to create the Wellness Promotion Project which includes a Health Clinic staffed full time

1991 — 1992 Director, Leadership Academy and School Based Management — MPS

- Supervision of the 70 School Based Management (SBM) schools
- Coordinated the school improvement planning process for all schools in MPS
- Liaison for over 300 school-community partnerships throughout MPS
- Member of the district budget committee charged with the task of drafting the yearly budget
- Coordinator and participant in the Academy for Urban School Leaders Project
 Community Superintendent Milwaylea Public Schools

1989 — 1991 Community Superintendent - Milwaukee Public Schools

• Chief administrative officer and instructional leader for 28 schools, 18,000

students

- Spearheaded a Next Century Education movement including having the principals participate in a "Creating Interdependent Sustainable Futures" course
- Collaborated with community to establish partnerships/ relationships within many schools

1986 — 1989 Principal, Garfield Elementary School - Milwaukee Public Schools

- Implemented a duo-specialty educational program for Garfield Math-Science, Early Childhood Center
- Recognized in 1987-88 as MPS' first elementary National School of Excellence

1978 — 1986 Superintendent - Lisbon #2 and Merton #4

 Served as Chief Administrative Officer and Instructional Leader of two separate school districts simultaneously; implemented peer coaching; created a committee of instruction that served to create the vision of learning for each district; moved to implement recommendations that left us on the cutting edge in Early Childhood, Mathematics, Technology, and Language Arts

1972 — 1978 Teacher- Middle Schools - Milwaukee Public Schools

EDUCATION:

Specialist in Administrative Leadership - UWM, Milwaukee, Wisconsin MS Educational Administration - UWM, Milwaukee, Wisconsin

BS Elementary Education - UWM, Milwaukee, Wisconsin

LICENSES:

District Administrator, K-12 Principal, Pre-K-12 1-6 Teacher

K-12 Director of Instruction

HONORS/AWARDS:

Garfield - National School of Excellence

Grand Avenue - Nomination - National School of Excellence

ACTIVITIES/PROFESSIONAL COMMUNITY RELATIONS:

Lindsay Heights Children's Success Coalition

Sweet Water Organics Board

Sustainable Story Hill

Milwaukee Food Council

Urban Foods for Urban Schools - Convener

UWM/MPS Partnership Program for Principal Preparation Advisory Board

Cardinal Stritch Doctoral Advisory Board

Cardinal Stritch University School of Education Advisory Board

University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee Dean's School of Education Advisory Board

Milwaukee Teacher Education Center Board - Vice President

Dorothy Danforth Compton Board of Governors

UWM's Milwaukee Idea Member

Healthiest Milwaukee Member

YMCA One on One Program Committee

Avenues West Association - Former President

High Wind Foundation Board - Vice-President

Blessed Trinity Administrative Stewardship Committee - Chair

FEATURED/CITED IN THE FOLLOWING PUBLICATIONS/STUDIES:

Belden Paulson's Book, Odyssey of a PracticalVisionary 2010

Tom Sergiovanni's Book, Moral Leadership 1996

Wisconsin Association of Middle Level Education Spring 1995 Publication, Grand Avenue

Middle School (featured school) Milwaukee Magazine, December 1989, *Miracle on 4th Street* INCLUSION in Secondary Schools, ©1997, *The Grand Avenue Middle School Story* NCREL Innovative Schools Evaluation

JAMES SONNENBERG

3325 North Summit Avenue Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53211

(414) 962-1310

Education

University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee Milwaukee WI December 1980

Bachelor of Science- Education, Major: Exceptional Education

University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee Milwaukee WI

Master of Science, Major: Elementary Education

GPA: 3.7, Dean's List

Taken courses and professional development inservices from Concordia University, Alverno, Cardinal Stritch and University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.

LEADERSHIP EXPERIENCE

Principal, Westside Academy I /II (Milwaukee Public Schools)

Milwaukee, WI September, 1991 to June, 2011

- Principal of MPS Mosiac School
- Manages \$6 million school budget that includes Title I, P5 and High Scope grants that allocates resources effectively and manages all school budgets and accounts so that funds are spent, responsibly and within fiscal policies and procedures
- Responsible for deploying personnel into grade levels according to union contracts and provide daily supervision to approximately 90 staff members.
- Lead school community in the change of Westside Academy to instrumentality charter status.
- Directed the collaborative development of our school's Educational Plan
- Initiates positive behavior intervention procedures for all students, ensures that all staff are trained in these procedures, and ensures appropriate documentation of disciplinary events.
- Fosters relationships with other organizations, partners and diverse community groups to build ownership for the work of the school and its mission.
- Visible and actively engages with the school community and markets the school and its program as a valuable part of the community.
- Provides opportunities for external stakeholders to participate in shared decision-making through consensus building and appropriate use of the school governance structures
- Observes, evaluates, and provides feedback to key stakeholders based on district expectations and state standards focusing on student achievement.
- Maintains a safe and orderly school environment, ensures the appropriate supervision of students, and ensures that a schoolwide discipline plan is implemented and followed.
- Ensures that all students make progress in the general curriculum.
- Ensures that students with special needs meet IEP goals in compliance with federal, state and district regulations.
- Facilitates the use of the district learning targets and works toward the development of an aligned curriculum, a curriculum map and classroom assessments based on standards. (CABS).

Assistant Principal Martin Luther King, Jr. Elementary/ Siefert Elementary (MPS)

Milwaukee, WI September, 1989- June, 1991

- Supported the principal in providing supervision of the teachers and other staff. Conducted formal and informal observations
- Handle student discipline issues using the discipline plan that was created by the teachers and assistant principal. Maintained a high degree of visibility in the school that resulted in developing a positive rapport with students and staff.
- Worked with the Parent School Organization president on meeting agendas and recruitment activities.

Professional Development

Team-Building Techniques Classroom Management Professional Learning Communities Leadership Skills Motivating Reluctant Learners School Culture Building Special Needs Education Culture of Poverty-Ruby Payne Classroom Instruction That Works

Strategies for Building Positive Relationships with Challenging Students and Parents

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

Special Education Teacher Robert Fulton Middle School (MPS) Milwaukee, WI October, 1980- June, 1989

- Lead special education teacher on a special education unit that housed 39 emotionally disturbed adolescent males.
- Developed a curriculum program that allowed our students to be successful.

Special Education Teacher St. Aemilian's Child Care Center

Milwaukee, WI September 1978- September, 1980

Special education teacher in residential treatment center

SALLIE A. BROWN 11135 West Heritage Drive Milwaukee, WI 53224

414-587-4604 chiefee@wi.rr.com

Thirty-three years of successful experience as a principal and teacher. Skilled in assessing issues, selecting and evaluating personnel, budgeting, programming, and proficient in data analysis as well as providing effective teaching strategies. Professional experience also includes teaching experience at the college level. Successfully turned a failing school around and developed and implemented Milwaukee Public Schools' first and only K4-12th grade school.

EDUCATION

University of Wisconsin – Milwaukee Department of Public Instruction - Master Administrator License 2008

University of WI – Milwaukee Specialist Certificate in Administrative Leadership 1986

University of WI – Milwaukee MS, Educational Psychology 1978

BS, Elementary Ed, June 76 University of WI – Madison

EXPERIENCE

Principal, WI Conservatory of Lifelong Learning (K-12) MPS – Milwaukee, WI August 1996 – July 2011

Principal, Trowbridge Elementary School of Discovery and Technology (MPS) Milwaukee, WI

August 1989 -1996

Assistant Principal, Audubon Middle School (MPS) – Milwaukee, WI September 1988 -1989

September 1988 -1989

Assistant Principal, Edison Middle School (MPS) – Milwaukee, WI September 1984 -1988

Teacher, John Burroughs Middle School (MPS) – Milwaukee, WI September 1979 – 1984 (English/Reading)

Teacher, Wilbur Wright Middle School (MPS) – Milwaukee, WI October 1977 - 1979 (English/Math)

OTHER EMPLOYMENT

State Assessor (Master Educator) – Department of Instruction (DPI)

September 2008 – 2011

Adjunct Instructor – Cardinal Stritch

September 2002 – 2006

Adjunct Instructor – Alverno College

September 2002 - 2005

Student Administrative Assistant (Professor Connie Knop)

September 1973 - 1976

Substitute Secretary – Milwaukee Public School 1972 - 1976

Substitute Teacher, Milwaukee Public Schools

September 1976 – 1977

Affiliations

National Association of Secondary Principals (NASSP)

Administrator Supervisory Council (ASC) Wisconsin Educators Administrative Council National Alliance of Black School Educators (NABSE) Milwaukee Alliance of Black School Educators (MABSE)

Committee Assignments

Administrators Supervisor Council (ASC) President	2008-2011
Alverno Educational Administrative Review Board	2001-2003
Facilities and Maintenance Advisory Board	2001
MPS Teacher Bargaining Team	2000 - 2003
UW- Parkside Teacher Education Community Advisory Board	1998 - 2003
Executive Technology Review Committee (Superintendent Appointed)	1987 - 2001
National Technology Board (Superintendent Appointed)	1999 - 2002
Concordia College – Humanities Advisory Board	1993 - 1995

Professional Experience

Marquette University – Administrative Leadership – Speaker 2000	- 2002
Presenter – National Association of Elementary School Principals Conference	2000
Fulbright Fellowship (Japan)	1999
Developer of Milwaukee Public Schools First K-12 School	1995

References

Dr. Howard Fuller Director of the Institute of Transformation for Learning - Marquette University 750 North 18^{th} Street Milwaukee, WI 53233 414-288-5774

Mr. Robert Nelson Former MPS Technology Director 867 Tallgrass Drive Grafton, WI 53024 414-531-9803

Dr. Spence Korte Former Milwaukee Schools Superintendent 10531 N. Elderberry Lane Mequon, WI 53092 414-737-1301

Mr. John Weigelt Administrative Supervisors Council – Executive Director 811 North Hawley Road Suite 110 Milwaukee, WI 53213 414-453-4400

APPENDIX K: SAMPLE STUDENT WEEKLY SCHEDULE SAMPLE PRIMARY STUDENT SCHEDULE:

	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	
7:45	Students Entrance/	Reflectiv e Practices	Teaching Procedures/	Morning Motivator/	Attendanc e Procedures	
8:00	Assembly	Assembl y	Assembly	Assembly	Assembly	
8:15	Breakfast	Breakfast	Breakfast	Breakfast	Breakfast	
8:30	Literacy Block 8:30am - 10:00am Phonics, Reading and Language Arts					
10:00	Break					
10:15	Mathematics Block 10:15 am -11:15 am					
11:15	Humanities	Science	Humanities	Science	Humanitie s	
	11:15-11:40	11:15- 11:40	11:15-11:40	11:15-11:40	11:15- 11:40	
			Recess/Lunc h			
			11:40-12:25			
12:30	Science	Soc. Stud.	Tech Lab	Soc. Stud.	Science	
1:25	Science	Soc. Stud.	Tech Lab	Soc. Stud.	Science	
1:30	Art	Art	Science	Library/Writing 6 Traits	PE	
	1:30-2:15	1:30-2:15	1:30-2:15	1:30-2:15	1:30-2:15	
2:15	PE	Writing 6 Traits	PE	Music	Music	

		Writing 6 Traits			
	2:15-3:00	2:15-3:00	2:15-3:00	2:15-3:00	2:15-3:00
3:00	Writing (Journals), Reflective Activities	Prepare for Dismissal			
3:30	Dismissal	Dismissal	Dismissal	Dismissal	Dismissal

APPENDIX L: ADDITIONAL CURRICULUM INFORMATION TO SUPPORT EDUCATIONAL CONCEPT

LITERACY will consist of the following components:

Elementary - The reading program the inclusion of systematic and sustained instruction in comprehension, content knowledge, and writing in the early grades as well as attention to the Reading First emphases on phonological awareness, decoding, word recognition, and reading fluency.

Middle Grades- The five tenets of our middle school reading program will be:

- Teachers will provide students with explicit vocabulary instruction both as part of reading and language arts classes and as part of content area classes such as science and social studies. By giving students explicit instruction in vocabulary, teachers help them learn the meaning of new words and strengthen their independent skills of constructing the meaning of text.
- Teachers will provide adolescents with direct and explicit instruction in comprehension strategies to improve students' reading comprehension.
 Comprehension strategies are routines and procedures that readers use to help them make sense of texts.
- 3. Teachers will provide opportunities for students to engage in high quality discussions of the meaning and interpretation of texts in various content areas as one important way to improve their reading comprehension.
- 4. To foster improvement in adolescent literacy, teachers will use strategies to enhance students' motivation to read and engagement in the learning process. Teachers should help students build confidence in their ability to comprehend and learn from content area texts. Some adolescents need more support to increase literacy skills than regular classroom teachers can provide.
- Students who are unable to meet grade-level standards in literacy often require supplemental, intensive, and individualized reading intervention to improve their skills.

Writing is supported through the use of shared and interactive writing (a focal point of the primary grades), writing workshop, and journal writing. The writing workshop utilized on a daily basis allows students to:

- Communicate effectively through writing for a variety of purposes and for different audiences
- Employ varying ranges of strategies during the writing process
- Apply knowledge of language structure, conventions, genre, etc. to create various products
- Learn and use editing techniques to improve quality of writing

MATHEMATICS will consist of the following components:

- The mathematics curriculum will build on Wisconsin Core Standards such as numeration and order; measures and measurement; operations; patterns, functions, and sequences; data and chance; geometry and spatial sense; and algebra and the use of variables.
- 7. The mathematics curriculum will integrate mathematics into other subject areas; mathematics becomes part of ongoing classroom routines and the transitional moments that occur every day. Our teachers will incorporate mathematical ideas and routines throughout the school day and encourage the children to continue the routines at home with their families.
- 8. Research that suggests that students rarely learn new concepts or skills the first time they experience them, but fully understand them only after repeated exposures. Students in our mathematical program will study important concepts over consecutive years; each grade level builds on and extends conceptual understandings established in prior grades.
- 9. Our instructional model will blend exposition and discussion, individual and group work, explorations, and projects.
- 10. In each grade level of the program, students will experience hands-on, student-centered, small-group activities, which introduce them to various mathematics concepts. Children also learn and practice basic facts throughout the curriculum in the context of problem solving, choral drills, and a variety of games.

LANGUAGE ARTS

The curriculum will concentrate on the student's' ability to write to a specific writing genre, to clearly communicate thoughts and ideas, and to master sentence structure, grammar and spelling. We envision writing not as a discrete subject, but as an important aspect of all content areas. Students will become proficient in different genres of writing based on a rubric system of scoring. Although students will be exposed to all forms of writing, concentration of study will be on the four genres of writing: expository, descriptive, narrative and persuasive. Our special education students receive small group instruction based on their IEP, which provides opportunities for more one on one instruction for each student. This method allows the students opportunities to achieve their IEP goals. We will develop a writing portfolio, which will be continually monitored by both student and teacher for growth and proficiency. Instruction in study skills, listening skills, and oral communication will be provided at all grade levels.

Exposing children to public speaking will further encourage communication skills, which are introduced in reading instruction.

SOCIAL STUDIES

Milwaukee Environmental Sciences Academy is dedicated to providing all students with information and skills necessary to become productive citizens in a democratic society. This means that students will explore the various areas of the social sciences. Students will also be taught the skills of the historian which include the ability to analyze primary sources, recognize bias, and fit

events into an historical context. An emphasis of economics and career/trade education will be provided. This will enable students to develop their talents into usable careers and develop leadership skills. Ideas for accomplishing this include community service activities, job shadowing, career opportunities, and speakers. A survey of businesses in the community will be conducted to determine availability of speakers, job shadowing opportunities, tours, and partnerships.

DISTANCE LEARNING AND VIRTUAL LEARNING

The use of virtual learning will spiral from kindergarten through high school. In order to prepare students to successfully participate in a virtual learning environment at the high school level, distance and online learning opportunities will be incorporated to support curriculum for students in kindergarten through grade five. Teachers will be encouraged to find the most appropriate online content for students at each grade level. The early introduction of content rich technology will enable students to begin to develop independent lifelong learning skills.

In grades six through eight, the students will have the opportunity to participate in a blended virtual learning environment that will provide both face-to-face instruction and the guided use of online resources. Since a foundation will have been established for online learning, students at this level will be able to work more independently.

High school students will have the option of participating in a virtual school program which will provide coursework online with support from teachers as needed. At this level, various degrees of blended instruction would be utilized.

Professional development for staff will also utilize online resources in order to individualize opportunities to support the needs of teachers. The resources will include nationally disseminated modules as well as locally developed and targeted packages.

SCIENCE

Our science curriculum at the elementary school level will contain basic concepts in science education, health, and environmental education, and sustainable development of local resources. It aims at bridging the gap between children's science knowledge and their daily conduct, thus making science more relevant to their life in the 21st century and to their aspirations for further education. The topics of the curriculum fall within six themes in all the grades: plants and their habitats - animals and their habitats - man and his health - matter and energy - the earth and the universe - man and the environment.

Our science curriculum is an integrated system of content, objectives, instruction, and evaluation. The core instructional strategy for our curriculum will be project-based learning which is a "hands on" approach to involve students actively in the learning process. It inspires students to obtain a deeper knowledge of the subjects they are studying and research also indicates that students are more likely to retain the knowledge gained through this approach far more readily than through traditional textbook-centered learning. There will be a balance between theoretical presentation of knowledge and practical science activities within and outside the classroom. In addition, we will incorporate individual and cooperative learning methods, the use of educational technology facilities, and coordination of science with other subject matter into our curriculum even at the youngest of ages.

APPENDIX M: LETTERS OF SUPPORT FROM BUSINESS AND COMMUNITY PARTNERS	



411 East Wisconsin Avenue Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202-4497 Tel 414.277.5000 Eax 414.271.3552 www.marfes.com Attorneys at Law in: Phoenix and Tucson, Arizona Naples, Florida Chicago, Illinois Milwanker and Madison, Whocavola

Writer's Direct Dial: 414.277.5215 E-Mail: john.peterburs@quarles.com

December 13, 2011

Dear Charter Proposal Committee Members:

I am writing this letter in support of the Milwaukee Teacher Education Center's (MTEC) proposal to the Milwaukee Public Schools' Board of Directors to operate a non-instrumentality charter school for the 2013-2014 school year. The mission of the MTEC School of Environmental Sciences (MSOES) is to provide a solid intensive program of academic study that focuses on inspiring students to seek healthier, more sustainable lifestyles. It is dedicated to the intellectual, physical, social, and emotional growth of all students within a safe and orderly environment. I believe that this school will create remarkable changes in students' views of their world because of how it will focus on the environmental sciences. Students will be exploring opportunities that provide choices and options for healthy living. In addition, the vision is to utilize investigation strategies, technology, and field experiences to drill deeper into the principles of sustainable learning and living. Ultimately, the school and its members will become a resource for our community's education of sustainability practices.

MTEC is a leader in teacher certification with over 15 years of providing more than 1,000 high-quality educators to the urban setting. A charter school seems to be a logical next step to providing high-quality education for Milwaukee's youth.

Currently, Milwaukee does not have a school that focuses on sustainability literacy, and I feel that MTEC has the track record to make this school a beacon of the community. I offer my support to the MTEC School of Environmental Sciences charter school proposal.

Very truly yours

John J. Peterburs, Ph.D. Executive Director

JJP:d2s QB\15337250.

High Wind Foundation W7122 County Road U Plymouth, Wisconsin 53073

December 15, 2011

Charter Proposal Committee MTEC School of Environmental Sciences MTEC, 1017 North 12th Street Milwaukee, WI 53233

Dear Colleagues,

As a person who has been familiar for a long time with the Milwaukee Teacher Education Center and its director, Tom McGinnity, and speaking on behalf of the High Wind Foundation, I am very supportive of the proposal to establish this MTEC School of Environmental Sciences. Milwaukee currently does not have a school that focuses on sustainability literacy. MTEC and its associates have the track record to make this charter school a beacon for the community.

The High Wind Association and its Foundation have thirty years of authentic experience organizing and teaching sustainability education. Two of its members served on the Education Task Force of the President's Council on Sustainable Development. We have taught seminars for years through the University of Wisconsin on sustainable futures; included in the classes have been 300 teachers and principles from MPS and other area systems. Foundation members established an ecological community near Plymouth, Wisconsin in the latter 1970s, and thousands of people from Wisconsin and nationally have participated in its programs, and learned about its solar buildings and the organic farm that now feeds 800 families. The programs teach and demonstrate the essentials of living sustainably, interrelating underlying values with appropriate technologies.

The proposed school will provide a solid, intensive program of academic study that focuses on inspiring students to seek healthier, more sustainable lifestyles. I believe this school will create remarkable changes in students' views of their world and prepare them for leadership in the community, as well as with the intellectual orientation and skills to perform well in the job market. With dire environmental stresses facing the planet, there is critical need for creative education as we prepare for the future. This school will be important not only for its own student population but it will serve as a significant pilot for others.

Because of our experience and commitments to build a sustainable world, the High Wind Foundation is prepared to offer technical assistance in a variety of ways, helping in designing curriculum, inviting teaching staff to visit its facilities, and helping as needs arise. We strongly support this initiative.

Bulden Paulon, PhD

President

Sweet Water Organics, Inc. www.sweetwater-organics.com / 414-489-0425



December 19, 2011

Dear Charter Proposal Committee Members:

I am writing this letter in support of the Milwaukee Teacher Education Center's (MTEC) proposal to the Milwaukee Public Schools' Board of Directors to operate a non-instrumentality charter school for the 2013-2014 school year. The mission of the MTEC School of Environmental Sciences (MSOES) is to provide a solid, intensive program of academic study that focuses on inspiring students to seek healthier, more sustainable lifestyles. It is dedicated to the intellectual, physical, social, and emotional growth of all students within a safe and orderly environment.

As the co-founder of Sweet Water Organics and Sweet Water Foundation, I am passionate about environmental sciences and how it can inspire and innovate our society for the better. Students at MSOES will utilize investigation strategies, technology, and field experiences to drill deeper into the principles of sustainable learning and living. Ultimately, the school and its members will become a resource for our community's education of sustainability practices.

MTEC is a leader in teacher certification with over 15 years of providing more than 1,000 highquality educators to the urban setting. A charter school seems to be a logical next step to providing high-quality education for Milwaukee's youth.

Milwaukee needs a school that focuses on environmental sciences to better prepare our youth for the jobs of tomorrow. I feel that MTEC has the track record to make this school a success. I offer my support to the MTEC School of Environmental Sciences charter school proposal.

Sincerely,

Josh Fraundorf Sweet Water Organics Inc.

Josh Fraundry

President / Co-Founder www.sweetwater-organic.com

(414) 232-0754 (Cell #) (414) 489-0425 (Voicemail)

email: josh.fraundorf@gmail.com



December 19, 2011

Dear Charter Proposal Committee Members:

I am writing this letter in support of the Milwaukee Teacher Education Center's (MTEC) proposal to the Board of Directors of Milwaukee Public Schools. MTEC proposes to operate a non-instrumentality charter school, beginning with the 2013-2014 school year, to provide a solid, intensive program of academic study that inspires and prepares students to lead healthier, more sustainable, globally responsible lives.

Called the MTEC School of Environmental Sciences, the proposed K-12 school would be dedicated to the intellectual, physical, social, and emotional growth of all students within a safe and orderly environment. Given its focus on environmental sciences and MTEC's leadership in this regard, the School of Environmental Sciences would stimulate important changes in students' views of their communities, the city, and the world. In addition, the proposed curriculum would support informed decision making about options for personal development and healthy living.

The curriculum would call on teachers to use a mix of instructional strategies to reach all children, including those for whom nontraditional methods are likely to have greater effect. Educators would utilize investigation strategies, technology, and field experiences to convey the principles of sustainable learning and living, while also teaching the science, math, technology, and critical thinking skills young people need to enter post-secondary education and training.

MTEC is a leader in teacher certification. Over the course of 15-plus years, MTEC has certified more than 1,000 high-quality educators whose efforts contribute to educational improvement in urban settings. The proposed School of Environmental Sciences is MTEC's next logical step to providing high-quality education for Milwaukee's youth, one that the Zilber Family Foundation wholeheartedly endorses.

In the Foundation's efforts to support the revitalization of Milwaukee neighborhoods, we have learned that high quality education tops the list of resident priorities. We also know that environmental concerns, food security and urban agriculture, energy consumption, and sustainability issues are important concerns for people who live and work in Milwaukee's most distressed communities, suggesting that community residents share MTEC's vision for the School of Environmental Sciences.

We hope you will give Milwaukee Teacher Education Center's charter application your most serious consideration, and stand ready to answer any questions you may have about its institutional capacity and leadership.

Sincerely,

Eusun Goyd

APPENDIX N: TENTATIVE SAMPLE TEACHER WORK WEEK

	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesda y	Thursday	Friday
7:30	Teachers Report	Teachers Report	Teachers Report	Teachers Report	Teachers Report
7:45	Students' Entrance/	Reflective Practices/	Teaching Procedures/	Morning Motivator/	Attendance Procedures
8:00	Assembly	Assembly	Assembly	Assembly	Assembly
8:15	Students Breakfast	Breakfast	Breakfast	Breakfast	Breakfast
	Literacy Block 8:30am - 10:00am				
	Phonics, Reading and Language Arts				
10:0 0	Lavatory Break for students				
10:1 5	Mathematics Block 10:15 am -11:15 am				
11:1 5	Humanities	Science	Humanities	Science	Humanities
	11:15-11:40	11:15-11:40	11:15- 11:40	11:15-11:40	11:15-11:40
			Lunch		
			11:40- 12:25		
12:3 0	Science	Soc. Stud.	Tech Lab	Soc. Stud.	Science
1:25	Science	Soc. Stud.	Tech Lab	Soc. Stud.	Science
1:30	Art	Art	Science	Library/Writin g 6 Traits	PE
	1:30-2:15	1:30-2:15	1:30-2:15	1:30-2:15	1:30-2:15
2:15	PE	Writing 6	PE	Music	Music

2:45	2:15-3:00	Traits Writing 6 Traits 2:15-3:00	2:15- 3:00	2:15-3:00	2:15-3:00
3:00	Writing (Journals), Reflective Activities	Prepare for Dismissal			
3:30	Students' Dismissal	Dismissal	Dismissal	Dismissal	Dismissal
3:30	Faculty meeting	Professional Developmen t	Grade level Meetings	Share Best Practices/ Analyze Student Work	Collaborativ e Lesson Planning
4:15	End of Teachers' Day	End of Teachers' Day	End of Teachers' Day	End of Teachers' Day	End of Teachers' Day

APPENDIX O: LOCAL ASSESSMENTS

Our school will provide our students with standards-based report cards in kindergarten through 12th grade that are based on the Core Standards (http://www.corestandards.org/). A standards-based report card lists the most important skills students should learn in each subject at a particular grade level. For example, in math, a first-grade report card might list these skills: number and operations, patterns, functions and algebra, geometry, and spatial sense, measurement, data analysis, statistics and probability. Instead of letter grades, students will receive marks that show how well they have mastered the particular skills. The marks show whether the student is beyond grade level expectations (advanced proficient), meeting grade level expectations (proficient), showing progress but not meeting (basic) or showing little or no progress (minimal). On many traditional report cards, students receive one grade for reading, one for math, one for science and so on. On a standards-based report card, each of these subject areas is divided into a list of skills and knowledge that students are responsible for learning. Students receive a separate mark for each standard.

The marks on a standards-based report card are different from traditional letter grades. Letter grades are often calculated by combining how well the student met his particular teacher's expectations, how he performed on assignments and tests, and how much effort the teacher believes he/she put into the subject area. On standards based, if child is proficient, it is marked proficient, not an average of all of the student's efforts.

APPENDIX P: ANY OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION

BIBLIOGRAPHY:

Cooper, H.,

Valentine, J.C., Charlton, K., Melson, A., "The Effects of Modified School Calendars on Student Achievement and on School and Community Attitudes," Review of Educational Research, 73 (1), pp. 1-52, 2003.

<u>Improving Adolescent Literacy: Effective Classroom and Intervention Practices</u> NCEE 2008-4027 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Foreign language study important in elementary school By Cheryl Walker [17] 336.758.5237 [35] June 26, 2004

What Works Clearinghouse Topic Report: Elementary School Math. July 16, 2007; 5 pages.

LEARNING FROM SCHOOL REFORM Henry M. Levin www.tc.columbia.edu/centers/coce/pdf_files/b4.pdf

Julie Henry, "Help for the boys helps the girls," *Times Educational Supplement* (London, UK), June 1 2001. Alison Gordon, "In a class of their own: boys benefit even more than girls from single-sex schools, A-level grades study reveals," in *The Mail on Sunday* (UK), June 11 2000, p. 42.

Sullivan, A., Joshi, H. and Leonard, D. (2010) 'Single-sex Schooling and Academic Attainment at School and through the Lifecourse'. American Educational Research Journal 47(1) 6-36

Teacher and Classroom Context Effects on Student Achievement: Implications for Teacher Evaluation S. PAUL WRIGHT, SANDRA P. HORN AND WILLIAM L. SANDERS University of Tennessee, Value-Added Research and Assessment Center, 225 Morgan Hall, P.O. Box 1071, Knoxville, Tennessee 37901-1071

Hitz, Mary M.; Somers, Mary Catherine; Jenlink, Christee L. The Looping Classroom: Benefits for Children, Families, and Teachers Developmental Psychology, v47 n5 p1207-1219 Sep 2011

Roberts, 1992. In Online Resources for Parent/Family Involvement. ERIC Digest by Ngeow, Karen Yeok-Hwa, 1999.

Cotton, K., Wikelund, K., Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory, School Improvement Research Series. In Parent Involvement in Education.

www.ecoliteracy.org/issues

<u>David Lipscomb Elementary School - Institute for Sustainable Practice.</u> www.lipscomb.edu

Wisconsin's Plan to Advance Education for Environmental Literacy and Sustainability in PK-12 Schools Developed by the Wisconsin No Child Left Inside Coalition

<u>A review of research on project-based learning</u> JW Thomas - San Rafael, CA: Autodesk Foundation. Retrieved April, 2000 - 173.226.50.98

<u>Standardized test outcomes for students engaged in inquiry-based science curricula in the context of urban reform</u> Robert Geier, Phyllis C. Blumenfeld, Ronald W. Marx, Joseph S. Krajcik, Barry Fishman, Elliot Soloway, Juanita Clay-Chambers Journal of Research in Science Teaching Volume 45, Issue 8, pages 922–939, October 2008

<u>Victory at Buffalo Creek: What Makes a School Serving Low-Income Hispanic Children Successful?</u> / Martin Haberman [Washington D.C.]: Distributed by ERIC Clearinghouse, 1999. 14 p.